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North Carolina State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish
within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. Pursuant to those requirements, we are pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lenoir for the fiscal
year ended June 30 2014.

The financial statements and supplemental schedules contained herein have been audited
by Eric Bowman, a licensed certified public accountant, and his unqualified opinion is
included in the Financial Section of this report. The report itself, however, is presented
by the City, which is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’s financial activity have been included.

The report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical, and
Compliance. The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, includes this transmittal
letter, list of principal officials, the City’s organizational chart, and the Government
Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting. The Financial Section includes the independent auditor’s repott,
management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, notes to the
financial statements, other supplementary information, and various fund schedules. The
Statistical Section, which is unaudited, contains selected fiscal, economic, and
demographic data designed to provide a more complete understanding of the City.
Several tables in this section present data for the past ten years. Finally, the Compliance
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Section presents reports and schedules required by the federal and state Single Audit
Acts, which are discussed in a later paragraph.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Lenoir was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies. The standards governing single audit engagements require the
independent anditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Compliance
section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a
narrative infroduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it. The City of Lenoir’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditor in the Financial Section of this report,

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (City of
Lenoir), as well as its component unit. Component units are legally separate entities for
which the primary government is financially accountable, Discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column in the basic financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to distinguish
their financial positions and results of operations from those of the primaty government.
The City of Lenoir ABC Board and Lenoir Tourism Development Authority are reported
as a discretely presented component unit.

City of Lenoir Profile

Located in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains, the City of Lenoir is the county
seat of Caldwell County. Incorporated in 1851 and named in honor of Revolutionary
‘War hero, General William Lenoir, the City has become an industrial center of
northwestern North Carolina, as well as being the hub of commercial and government
activity in the county. Lenoir is the largest incorporated area in the County and serves a
population of 17,912. All the major cultural, medical, governmental and financial
activities of the County are located in the City. Lenoir enjoys a temperate climate with a
mild four-season year. We are located within an hout’s drive to the northwest to enjoy
ski slopes and the Blue Ridge Parkway, and a five-hour drive to the southeast to enjoy the
white beach sands of the Atlantic Ocean.

The City is empowered by State statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation. Tt
engages in continual review of areas of potential future annexation by petition and
statute. The last major annexation of the City was in 2001 when it annexed
approximately 850 patcels of land into its corporate limits.




The City has a council/manager form of government. The mayor is elected to a four-year
term and the seven members of the council are elected to staggered four-year terms.
Council members hold policy-making and legislative authority. They are also
responsible for adopting the budget and appointing the City Manager. The manager is
responsible for implementing policies, managing daily operations, and appointing
department heads,

The City provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire
protection, solid waste collection, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and
zoning, community and economic development, recreational activities, cemeteries and
grounds-keeping, water treatment and distribution, and wastewater collection and
treatment. In addition to general governmental activities, the City has a Municipal
Service Taxing District in the downtown area. The District is operated and devoted to
development within the taxing district. As the City of Lenoit governing body éxercises
oversight of the District, this activity is included in the reporting entity. The report
includes all the City’s activities in maintaining these services.

The City also extends financial support to certain agencies and authorities to assist their
efforts in serving citizens. Among these are the Western Piedmont Couneil of
Governments and the Foothills Regional Airport Authority,

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Lenoir’s financial planning
and control. The City’s budget is adopted by ordinance in accordance with the General
Statutes of North Carolina, which requires estimated revenues and expenditures to be
balanced. The budget includes only expenditures expected during the fiscal year, The
budget is adopted on a modified accrual basis. All expected operating funds are included
in the Budget Ordinance and are expended in accordance with the adopted ordinance.
The fiscal year budget, by State Statute, begins July 1 and ends June 30.

North Carolina General Statutes also provide for capital projects and special revenue
grants to be adopted for the life of the project and/or grant. The City of Lenoir has
several such projects includes in this report, These include the Fairview Street Bridge,
downtown streetscape, the greenway, the Fit Community project, HOME and CDBG
projects, and several public safety grants.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund (e.g. general), function (e.g. public safety),
and department (e.g. finance). Department heads may request the City Manager, acting
as Budget Officer, make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments can be approved by the City Manager, Actual-to-
budget comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison is presented as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental
funds. For other activities with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented
in the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statement section of this report. Also’
included in this section are project-length actual-to-budget comparisons for which a
project-length budget has been adopted.
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Economic condition and outloolt

Small business growth in Lenoir has been impacted by national economic trends as
evidenced by fewer business start-ups during fiscal year 2013-2014. The number of new
jobs in the downtown area showed a slight decrease due to the loss of several jobs
resulting fiom the closure of various retail stores. Private investment in building
renovations continued but at a lower rate than in previous years,

Major initiatives

Unemployment in the region and the turmoil in the national economy coniributed to an
increase in vacant retail space in Lenoir during fiscal year 2013-2014. The 308,141
square feet of vacant retail space includes the relocation and consolidation of two
furniture and home furnishing businesses which are typically among the hardest hit
during a recession. , Private investment in the downtown revitalization area was less than
the previous year. Vacant and underutilized industrial and manufacturing space continues
to be a challenge for Lenoir.

To continue the city’s on-going efforts in the revitalization of downtown, the streetscape
project continued during this fiscal year. The updating of the Harper Avenue sidewalks
and new uptown activities have created a more pleasant environment for downtown
business.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway. We now have
approximately 10.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate limits, The projectisa
partnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoit, and
Caldwell County Pathways Committee.

Financial information

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to protect the assets of the City from loss, theft or misuse, and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (n
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be received and (2) the
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single audit — As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the City also is
responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control structute to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The results of the City’s
single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws
and regulations relative to grant administration,
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Other information

Independent audit — N, C. General Statutes require an annual independent financial
audit of all local government units in the State. Eric Bowman, CPA, has audited the
financial records of the City and his opinion has been included in this report. His audit
was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly,
included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as he
considered necessary in the circumstances. His unqualified opinion indicates that the
accompanying basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet
the requirements of the federal Single audit Act of 1984 and related OMB Circular A-
133,

The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
Compliance Section.

Awards — The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Lenoir for its comprehensive annual financial report for the year
ended June 30, 2013, This was the sixtcenth consecutive year that the City of Lenoir has
achieved this prestigious award, In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting ‘
principles and applicable legal requirements, A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a
petiod of one year only., We believe our current comprehensive annual financial report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements — We recognize that responsibility for the contents of this report is
the City’s but it would be inappropriate not to mention the invaluable assistance of the
staff in the Morganton, North Carolina, office of our independent auditor, Eric Bowman.
Assistance and cooperation was also provided by the City’s various departments and is
appreciated by the City Manager and Finance Director. “Thank you® is extended to you,
the Mayor and Lenoir City Council, for your continued support.

As required by N. C. General Statute 159.34, a copy of this report will be filed with the
Secretary of the North Carolina Local Government Commission. In addition, a copy will
be sent to the City Clerk to be available for public inspection.
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Fax (828) 438-9117

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Lenoir’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of Bmerica; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevani to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the City of
Lenoir ABC Board which represents 1 percent, 1 percent and 14 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the component unit.
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon has
been furnished to us, and our opinicn, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the City of Lenoir ABC Board, is based solely on the report of
the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmental Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those standards
reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

The financial statements of City of lLenoir ABC Board were not audited in
accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud ox
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To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. BAccordingly, we express no
such cpinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reascnableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that our audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate tc provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors,
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Lenoir, North Carolina as of June 30, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows therecf and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that Managementfs Discussion and Analysis and the other Post
Empiloyment Benefit and the Law Enforcement Officer’s Special Separation
Allowance Schedules of Funding Process Employer Contributions on page 4
through 1% and 60 through 61, respectively, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is reguired by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consist of inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.




To the Honorakle Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Lenoir’s basic financial
statements. The introductory information, combining and individual fund
financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and statistical
section as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and
state awards as required by U.S. Office and Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules,
other schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used te
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other
auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
described above, and the report of other auditors the combining and
individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules
and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory information and the statistical secticons have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated September 10, 2014 on our consideration of the City of Lenoir’s
internal contrel over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audifing
Standards in considering City of Lenoir’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

. A B
5. Eric Bowman, P.A,
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
September 10, 2014




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2014

As management of the City of Lenoir, we offer readers of the City of Lenoir’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Lenoir for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative,

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Lenoir exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $65,379,889 (net position).

» The government’s total net position increased by $1,060,098 with a $196,218
decrease in governmental activities and a $1,256,316 increase in business-type
activities.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Lenoir’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $5,836,171 an increase of $294,059 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 65.16 percent of this total amount
or $3,802,351 is available for spending at the government’s discretion, -

» At the end of the cutent fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund was $3,574,740 or 21.90 percent of total general fund expenditures for the
fiscal year.

» The City of Lenoir’s total debt decreased by $2,125,702 or 15.37 percent during
the current fiscal year,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of Lenoir’s
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three
compenents: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present
two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report containg
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the
financial condition of the City of Lenoir, '




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2014

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements . Statements Statenients
Summary > Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term
information about the City’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through I) are Fund Financial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s government. These
statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are four
parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statement; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary
fund statements, '




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2014

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements.” After the
notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the City’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this
part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a
broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide shoit and long-term
information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have
changed. Net position is the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City’s
financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental
activities; 2) business-type activitiecs and 3) component units. The governmental
activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public safety, transportation,
environmental protection, economic and physical development, cultural and recreational,
and general administration. Property taxes, state and federal grants, and state-shared
revenues finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the
City charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer services offered
by the City of Lenoir. The final category is the component units. Although legally
separate from the City, the ABC Board and LTDA Board are impottant to the City
because the City exercises control over the Boards by appointing its members. The ABC
Board is also required to distribute a portion of its profits to the City.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report,
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Lenoir, like all other governmental entities in Notth Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the
funds of City of Lenoir can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds. ' ' '
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Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of
the City’s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds, These Tunds focus on
how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides
a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or
less financial resources available to finance the City’s progtams. The relationship
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a
part of the fund financial statements.

The City of Lenoir adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the
General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorpotates input from
the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to
obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City
complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format,
language, and classifications as the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the otiginal budget as adopted by
the Council; 2} the final budget as amended by the Council; 3) the actual resources,
charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference
or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — City of Lenoir has only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Lenoir uses an enterptise fund to
account for its water and sewer activity. This fund is the same as those functions shown
in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 28 of this
report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the
City of Lenoit’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
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employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 60 of
this repont.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Lenoir, assets exceeded liabilities and

deferred inflows of resources by $65,379,889 as of June 30, 2014 (figure 2).

The City of Lenoir’s Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and Other Assels £ 6505327 § 6,121,954 & 3736029 § 3917,058 $ 10,241,556 $ 10,039,012
Capital Assets 25,030,412 25,434,237 43,954,377 44,762,651 68,984,789 70,196,888
Total Assets . $ 31,535939 § 31,556,101 § 47690406 § 48,679,709 § 79,226,345 § 80235900
Long-Term Liabilities $  L518679 § 2,712,301 § 10085060 § 12,303,834 § 11,703,739 § 15,016,635 )
Qther Liabilities 1,624,679 " 251,160 518,038 480,727 2,142,717 731,887
Total Liabilities $§ 3143358 § 2963961 § 10,703,098 § 12,784,561 § 13846456 § 15,748,522
Memberships Paid in Advance - 3431 . - 3431
Deferred Inflows of Resources s - 8 3431 3 - 8 - 8 - 8 3,431
Net Position:
Net Investment in § 23,511,733 8§ 23,908,648 § 33769317 § 32458799 $§ 57,281,050 § 56,367,447
Capital Assets
Restricied 2,033,820 2,090,733 2,033,320 2,000,733
Unresiricted 2,847,028 2,589,418 3,217,991 3,272,193 6,065,019 5,861,611
Total Net Position $ 28392581 § 28,588,799 § 36987,308 S 35730992 $ 65379889 § 64319791
Figure 2

The largest portion of the City of Lenoir’s net position (87.6 percent) reflect its
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, etc.), less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City of Lenoir uses those
assets to provide services to its citizens which make those assets not available for future
spending. Although the City of Lenoir’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed fo repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Lenoir’s net position
(3.11%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
used or that are not spendable. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position
($6,065,019) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors, The increase in net position is due mainly to the reduction of debt paid during
the fiscal year.
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Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations influenced the total
unrestricted net position:

e Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a tax
collection percentage of 94.48
o Adherence to the adopted budget

Governmental activities: Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by
$196,218. (Figure 3) Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

. Depreciation of capital assets

City of Lenoir Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Govermental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues:

Program revermies:
Charges for services $ 172l 0§ 1737255 0§ IMIBS  F 1598 S 9700796 § 0 9,514,853
Operating grants and contributions 1,702,475 1,685,037 - - 1,702,475 1,685,037
Capital grents and contributions 225,658 365,146 225,658 365,146

Gerneral revenues:
Property faxes 7,544,703 7,514,078 - - 7,544,703 7,514,078
) Ocher taxes 3,516,230 3,902,194 - - 3,516,230 3,902,194
Unirestricted intergovernmental 2,046,411 1,743,940 - - 2046411 1,743,940
Other 17,153 407,130 420,780 80,794 1,137,933 487,924
Total revenues 17,505,551 17,354,780 8,368,655 7,858,392 25,874,206 25,213,172

Ropenses:

General povernmant 3,179,927 3,046,921 - “ 3,179,927 3,046,021
Public safety 8,048,078 8,207,917 - - 3,048,078 8,207,917
Transportation 2,261,096 2,347,838 - - 2,261,006 2,347,838
Environmental protection 842,366 855,159 - - 842,366 855,159
Econotmic and physical development 1,282,460 1,355,971 - - 1,282,460 1,355,971
Culture and recreational 2,040,197 2,007,287 - - 2,040,197 2,007,287
Tnterest and foes - 47,645 65,475 - - 47,645 65475
Water and sewer 7,112,339 6,961,985 7,112,339 6,961,985
Total expenses 17,701,769 17,886,568 7,112,339 6,961,985 24,814,108 24,848,553
Change in net position (196,218) (531,788) 1,256,316 896,407 1,060,098 364,619
Net position, July 1 28,588,799 29,120,587 35,730,992 34,834,585 64,319,791 63,955,172
et position, Jime 30 $ 28392581 § 28588799 % 36987308 § 35730992 § 65379839 § 64319791
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Figure 4 is a graphic presentation of functional expenses with related program revenues
and grants

City of Lenoir
Expenses and Program Revenues and Operating Grants — Governmental Activities
Figure 4
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Figure 5 is a graphic presentation of governmental revenues by source.

Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities
Figuve 5

0% 1%

B Ad valorem taxes B Other taxes & licenses DUnrestricted intergovemmentat
BRestricted intergovemmental WPermits & fees 0Sales & services
BInvestment earnings ’ OMiscellaneous WPayment from ABC Board

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Lenoir’s net
position by $1,256,316. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

¢ Reduction of debt

11
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Lenoir uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Lenoir’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the City of Lenoir’s financing requirements.
Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Lenoir. At the end of the
current fiscal year, available fund balance of the General Fund was $3,574,740, while
total fund balance reached $5,748,769. As a measute of the general fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both available fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Available fund balance represents 21.90 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 35.22 percent of that same amount. The
increase in unassigned fund balance is due mainly to the strict adherence to the budget.

At June 30, 2014, the governmental funds of City of Lenoir reported a combined fund
balance of $5,836,171 a 5.31 percent increase over last year. Included in this change in
fund balance are increases in the Special Revenue Fund and in the Capital Projects Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights Generally, budget amendments fall into one of
three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants;
aud 3} increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

During the fiscal year, the City found if necessary to revise the General Fund budget.
These amendments are summarized as follows:

General Government, Public Safety, Transportation, and Environmental Protection were
increased by $1,734,120, while Environmental Protection decreased by $26,000. The
resulting $1,708,120 increase was funded by a combination of increased revenues and
appropriated fund balance. The increase in budget was for cconomic development grants
and street repairs.

Proprietary Funds, The City of Lenoit’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unassigned net
position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$3,217,991. The fund’s net position increased by $1,256,316. The factors concerning

12
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the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of

Lenoir’s business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Lenoir’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business—-type activities as of June 30, 2014, totals $68,984,789 (net of accumulated
depreciation). (Figure 6) These assets include buildings, infrastructure, land, equipment,

plant and systems, and vehicles,

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions:

Major bridge construction

¢+ Gunpowder Wastewater Plant Improvements

City of Lenoir’s Capital Assets

Figure 6
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tetals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 2,961,785 $ 2,920,697 § 251,714 $ 239714 % 3,213,499 & 3,160,411
Buildings and improvements 7,315,837 7,587,670 “ - 7,315,837 7,587,070
Infrastructure 11,617,759 12,265,677 - - 11,617,759 12,265,677
Equipment 2,250,913 2,283,802 3,449,352 3,556,390 5,700,265 5,840,192
Plant and systems 39,935,940 40,951,538 39,935,940 40,951,538
Construction in progress 884,118 376,991 317,371 15,009 1,201,489 392,000
Total $ 25030412  $25434,237  §43,954,377 $ 44,762,651 § 68,084,789 § 70,196,888

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note IIL A. 4 and 5,

beginning on page 42 of this report.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2014, the City of Lenoir had total debt outstanding of
$5,669,271 in State and Water Pollution Control Revolving loans, $222,000 in a Section
108 Loan and installment purchase contracts of $5,812,468. (Figute 7)

13
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City of Lenoir’s Outstanding Debt
Revolving Loans and Installment Purchases

Figure 7
Governmental Business-type
_ Activitics Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Section 108 Loan $ 22000 § 324,000 $ 222,000 3 324,000
Revolving Loans - - 5,669,271 6,243,763 5,669,271 6,243,763
Installment Purchase Contracts 1,296,679 1,201,589 4,515,789 6,060,089 5,812,468 7,261,678
Tofal $ 1,518679 § 1,525,589 $ 10,185060 § 12,303,852 § 11,703,739 § 13,829441

The above debt of the City of Lenoir decreased by $2,125,702 (15.37%) during the past
fiscal year.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, the City of Lenoir has
an “A” rating from Standard & Poor’s, dated March of 1999; an “A2” rating from
Moody’s Investors Services dated July of 1997; and an “81” council rating from the
North Carolina Municipal Council, Inc., dated January of 1999,

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located
within that government’s boundaries less statutory deductions for bonds applicable to
water systems. The legal debt margin for City of Lenoir is $132,304,486.

Additional information regarding the City of Lenoir’s long-term debt can be found
beginning on page 53 of this report,

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

While job losses and property values of industrial property continued to decline in the
traditional manufacturing economy of the City, the past fiscal year provided indicators
that groundwork is being laid for a transition into a more diversified economic base,
During fiscal year 2011-2012, the economic impact of the national recession was

mirrored in the economic health of Lenoir. The unemployment rate for the Hickory-
Lenoir-Morganton MSA, led to less disposable income for many Lenoir

14
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residents. Small job gains in micro business start-ups were counteracted by an equal
number of job losses due to business closures. Private investment dollars, especially in
downtown, declined from previous years as local banks were less likely to extend loans
for building renovations or property acquisition.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway. We now have
approximately 10.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate limits. The project is a
partnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoir, and
Caldwell County Pathways Conunittee, '

Residential growth currently taking place on the northern and western portions of
Caldwell County is particularty encouraging for the future development of retail and
service businesses within the City.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

Governmental Activities: In light of the continuing local economic pressures the City
of Lenoir adopted an austere budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014, The
General Fund budget was based on less than 3.11 percent increase in total revenues and
expenditures from the prior year, This included a two cent property tax increase.

Business—Type Activities: Again in light of economic pressures, the City of Lenoir, in
the last 3 to 4 years has seen water consumption drop with a resulting lowering of water
and sewer revenue, The Water and Sewer Fund budget was adopted with a 1.27 percent
increase in expenditures funded with a slight rate increase.

Requests for Information

* This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director, City of
Lenotir, P.0O. Box 958, Lenoir, N.C. 28645.

15
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2014
{Exhibit C)
Special Non Major Tofal
Revenue Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 4,398,116 $ 88,107 % - § 4,486,223
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 255,746 255,746
Taxes receivable (net) 276,381 276,381
Accounts receivable (nef) 711,861 711,861
Other receivables 540,603 69,500 165,213 715,316
Due From Other Funds 151,871 191,871
Total assels 6,118,832 $ 157,607 % 420959 § 6,697,398
Lizbilities:
Accounts payable 93,682 2,526 296,767 392,975
Due to other funds 191,871 191,871
Total Habilities 93,682 2,526 488,638 584,846
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavallable Properly Taxes 276,381 276,381
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 276,381 - - 276,381
TFund balances:
Non Spendable
Cemetery Care 256,551 256,551
Restricted
Stabilization by Siate Siatute 1,444,335 1,444,335
Substance Control 35,007 35,007
Public Safety 297,927 297,927
Assigned
Land Development 396,760 396,760
Unassigned 3,574,740 155,081 {324,230) 3,405,591
Total fund balances 5,748,769 155,081 (67,679) 5,836,171
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances 6,118,832 § 157,607 & 420,959 & 6,697,308

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemed8




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconeiliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

{Exhibit C-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmental funds $ 5,836,171

Capital assets used in-governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds, 25,030,412

Liability for earned revenues are considered deferred inflow of resources in the finds, 276,381

Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

in the finds, (2,750,383)
Net position of govermmentat activities $ 28,392,581
19

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Stafement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For fhe Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Exhibit D)
Speclal Non Major Total
Revenue Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes 3 7,593,573 $ 1,593,573
Other taxes and licenses 3,516,230 3,516,230
Unrestricted infergovernmental revenues 2,046,411 2,046,411
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 791,992 1,123,122 164,408 2,079,522
Pennits and fees 191,572 191,572
Sales and services 1,561,348 1,561,348
Invesiment earnings 2,648 237 2,885
Misceltaneous 315,808 2,745 318,553
Payment from ABC Board 223,333 223,333
Total revenues 16,242,915 1,123,122 167,380 17,533,427
Expenditures
Current;
General Governinent 3,613,421 3,613,421
Public safety 7,577,783 4,806 7,582,589
Transportation 1,634,821 1,634,821
Environmental protection 731,850 731,850
Economic and physical development 550,033 730,910 1,280,943
Cultural and recreational 1,789,038 67,185 1,856,223
Capital projects 307,125 507,125
Debt service:
Principal retirement 391,910 102,000 493,910
Interest and fees 33,791 13,854 47,645
Total expenditures 16,322,647 518,755 507,125 17,748,527
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs
over {undey) expenditures (79,732) 204,367 (339,735} {215,100)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issvance of instaliment purchase debt 487,000 487,000
Proceeds from disposal of capital assels- 22,159 22,159
Transfers 195,000} 75,000 120,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 314,159 75,000 120,000 509,159
Net change in fund balances 234,427 279,367 (219,735) 294,059
Fund balance - beginning 5,514,342 (124,286) 152,056 5,542,112
Fund balance - ending § 5,748,769 3 155081 § (67,679 § 5,836,171

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 20




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Exhibit D-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fond balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay is less than depreciation,

Revenues in the fund statements not recorded in the government wide
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenues in the funds,

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in nef position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral

part of this statement. 21

294,059

(402,659)

(22,159)

(27,877

6,910

(44,492)

(196,218)




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Generat Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Exhibit E)
Varlance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budgei Actual | {Negative)
REVENUES —
Ad valorcm taxes $ 7205892 § 7,205,892 § 7,593,573 § 387,681
Other taxes and licenses 3,300,447 3,647,447 3,516,230 (131,217)
Unrestricted intergovemmental revenues 1,560,000 2,010,000 2,046,411 36,411
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 636,000 761,000 791,992 30,992
Permits and fees 217,000 217,000 191,572 (25,428)
Sales and services 1,601,690 1,601,650 1,561,348 (40,342)
Investment eamings 27,200 27,200 2,648 (24,552)
Miscellaneous 165,500 261,620 315,808 54,188
Payment from ABC Board 207,500 207,500 223,333 15,833
Total revenues 14,930,229 15,939,349 16,242,915 303,566
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Govemment - 2,356,788 3,616,909 3,613,421 3,488
Public safety 7,497,321 7,593,319 7,571,783 15,536
Transportation 1,377,365 1,648,366 1,634,821 13,545
Environmental profection 748,488 722,488 731,850 (9,362)
Economic and physical development 538,781 609,780 550,033 59,747
Cultural and recreational 1,776,458 1,812,459 1,789,038 23,421
Debt setvice;
Principal retirement 426,133 426,133 391,910 34,223
Interest and fees 38,895 38,895 33,791 5,104
. Total expenditures 14,760,229 16,468,349 16,322,647 145,702
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 170,600 (529,000) (79,732) 449,268
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Approprinted find balance 212,000 (212,000)
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 25,000 25,000 22,159 (2,841)
‘Proceeds from installment purchase 487,000 487,000 -
Transfers out:
To Special Revenue Fund (75,000} {75,000} {75,000} -
To Capital Projects (120,000) (120,000) (120,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (170,000) 529,000 314,159 (214,341)
Net change in fund balances $ - 8 - 234427 § 234,427
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 5,514,342
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 5,748{769

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
part of this statement 22




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014
{Exhibit I)
Enterprise Fund
Water
and Sewer
Fund
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,973,883
Accounts recelvable (net) 574,638
Inventories 61,973
Resticted Cash and cash equivalents 125,535
Total current assets 3,736,029
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net 43,954,377
Total noncurrent assets 43,954,377
Total assets 47,690,406
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 207,661
Instatlment purchase conitacts - current 1,511,863
Revolving loan payable - current 331,500
Customer deposits 125,535
Compensated absences payable 72,600
Total current liabilities 2,248,559
Noneurrent liabilities
Revolving loan payable 5,337,771
Installment purchase contracts payable 3,003,926
OPEB Liability 61,524
Compensated absences payable 51,318
Tetal noncurrent fabilities 8,454,539
Total liabilities 10,703,098
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 33,769,317
Unrestricted Net Position 3,217,991
‘L'otal Net Position 36,987,308

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
patt of this statement.
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City of Lénoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 39, 2014
{Exhibit G}

Operating revenues
Water sales
Wastewater treatment charges
Water and sewer taps
Late payment charges
Miscellaenous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant
Water distribution
Water resources
Wastewater collection
Waslewaler pretreatment
Gunpowder Wastewaler Treatment Plant
Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (Toss)
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Titerest eamed on investments
Interest paid on long-term debt
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)
Change in Nef Position

Total Net Position - beginning, as previously reported

Total Net Pesition - ending

The notes to (he financlal statements are an integral

part of this statement.
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Enterprise Fund

Water

and Sewer

Fund

5,077,965
2,610,365
26,200
233,345
419,534

8,367,409

1,318,980
1,151,172
546,608
540,337
183,078
504,918
1,296,962
1,230,635

6,772,690

1,594,719

L410
(339,813) -

(338,403)

1,256,316

35,730,992

36,987,308




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Exhibit H)

Operating activities
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for employee benefits
Customer deposits returned
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construciion of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral
part of this siatement. 25

Enterprise Fund

Water

and Sewer

Fund

8,398,201
(3,090,015)
(2,413,578)

7475

2,902,083

(422,361)
(2,118,792)
(339,813)

(2,880,966)

1,410

1,410

22,527

3,076,891

3,099,418




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30,2014
{(Exhibit H)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and accruals
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absence payable
Increase (decrease) in OPEB
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

‘The notes io the financial statements are an integral
part of this statement. 26

Enterprise Fund

Water
and Sewer _
Fund

1,594,719

1,230,635

30,792
8,609

6,516
7.475
10,577
12,760

1,307,364

2,902,083




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014
(Exhibit I)
Agency
Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 25,660
Total assets $ 25,660
Liabilities
Due to agency $ 25,660
Total Labilities 5 25,660

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
part of this statement,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

The accounting policies of the City of Lenoir and its discretely presented component
units conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments,
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Lenoir (City) is a municipal corporation of the State
of North Carolina. It is governed by an elected board of eight consisting of a mayor and
a soven-member council. These financial statements present the City and its component
units, legally-separate entities for which the City is financially accountable. The
discretely presented component units below are reported in separate columns in the
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

City of Lenoir Board of Alcoholic Control

The members of the City of Lenoir Aleoholic Control's (ABC Board) governing board
are appointed by the City. In addition, the ABC Board is required by State statute to
distribute the majority of its surpluses to the General Fund of the City. A smaller portion
of the ABC Board's surpluses ate distributed to the Caldwell County School
Administrative Unit. The ABC Board, which has a Junte 30 year end, is presented as a
proprietary fund (discrete presentation). Complete financial statements for the ABC
Board may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices at City of Lenoir ABC
Board, ABC Court, Lenoir, NC 28645.

Lenoir Tourism Development Authority Board

The members of the Lenoir Tourism Development Authority’s (LTDA Board) governing
board are appointed by the City. The LTDA collects a 3% room occupancy fax from the
rental of any room, lodging or accommodation furnished by a hotel, motel, inn, tourist
camp, or similar place within the city. Complete financial statements for the LTDA
board may be obtained City Hall, City of Lenoir, 801 West Ave., NW, Lenoir, NC 28645,

B. Basis of Presentation

Goverrmment-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the primary government and its component unit,
These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City,
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct and program revenues
for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Dircet expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. City of Lenoir’s policy for eliminating internal
activity in the government-wide statement of activities indicate that interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and
fiductary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values, Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It isused to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and state-shared revenues. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, streets and highways, sanitation, parks and
recreation, and general government services. The City also maintains a separate sub-fund
for the Downtown Service District for accounting purposes. This sub-fund has been
consolidated into the General Fund for reporting purposes. Debt service payments for
general long-term debt are accounted for in the General Fund.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes. The City has nine Special Revenue Fund projects
including the Governor’s Highway Safety Grant, Fit Community Grant; PARTF (irant,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

2011, 2012 and 2013 Community Development Entitlement Grants; and 201 1, 2012 and
2013 Unifour HOME Consortium Grants,

The City Reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:
Capital Project Fund

The Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds). The City has three projects within the Capital Project Fund: the
Fairview Street Bridge, Downtown Streetscape, and Greenway.

Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund dccounts for the Perpetual Care Fund. The interest earned on the
nonexpendable invested principal is used for the ongoing maintenance of the City’s
cemetery.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues eatned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes. Water and sewer capital projects are included in the Water and Sewer
Capital Project Fund.

The City reports the following fund type:

Agency Tund - Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the
measurement of operating results, Agency funds are used to account for assets the City
holds on behalf of others. The City maintains the following agency fund: CheckFree Pay
which accounts for collection of payments of AT&T and Piedmont Natural Gas
customers and flex spending. We excluded these activities from the City’s government-
wide financial statement because the eity cannot use these assets to finance its operation,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — In accordance with North Carolina

General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year using the modified
accrual basis of accounting,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The
government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
financial statements. The City’s one fiduciary fund (an agency fund) has no
measurement focus and is excluded from the government-wide financial statements,
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place, Nonexchange transactions,
in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants and donations. On an acorual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.  Governmental Fund Financial Statements.
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability
is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after yeat-
end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue
because the amount is not susceptible to acérual. At June 30, taxes receivable are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, State of North Carolina
is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on
behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles
are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are
received. Uncollected taxes that are billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for
limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are
offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the city are
recoghized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash,
Grant revenues, which are unearned at year-end, are recorded as unearned revenues,

Under terros of grant agreements, the City finds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues, Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and untestricted net assets
available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

D. Budgetary Data - As required by the N. C. Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act (G.S. 159), the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual balanced
budget ordinance for all governmental and proprietary funds except for those funds,
which operate under project ordinances. The City has adopted project ordinances for the
Capital Projects and Special Revenue Funds. The annual budget is prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system in
recording transactions, as required by G.S. 159-26(c).

Appropriations are made at the departmental level and are amended as necessaty by the
governing board. All appropriations (other than funds with multi-year budgets) lapse at
year-end. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level
for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for project ordinances. The City
Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a department; however, any
revisions that alter total expenditures of any department must be approved by the
governing board, The amended budget ordinance as of June 30, 2014, is included in the
financial statements but has been restructured to conform to the actual data. The City's
governing board enacted supplemental budget ordinances during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014, The ordinances increased appropriations by $1,708,120 in the City’s
General Fund and $125,000 in the City's Water and Sewer Fund,

As required by G.S. 159-26(d), the City maintains encumbrance accounts, which are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”, Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent
the estimated amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in
process at year-end arc completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities and are either charged to an appropriation in the
following year or the contractual commitment is cancelled.

K. Asscts, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments - All deposits of the City, TDA and the ABC Board are
made in board-designated official depositories and are collateralized as required by G.S.
159-31. Official depositories may be established with any bank or savings and loan
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City, LTDA and ABC
Board may establish time deposit accounts in the form of NOW accounts, SuperNOW,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. State law, G.S. 159-30(c) authorizes
the City and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and intetest by the United States; obligations of the
State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or
public authority; obligations of certain nonguaranteed federal agencies; certain high
quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina
Capital Management Trust (NCCMT); a SEC-registered mutual fund.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The City, LTDA and the ABC Board’s investments with a maturity of more than one
year at acquisition and non-money market investmenfs are cartied at fair valuc as
determined by quoted market prices. The NCCMT Cash Portfolio's securities are valued
at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's
secutities are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and non-participating interest earnings
and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securitics which are callable
and which provide for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until
maturity, These investments are stated at cost in the City's financial statements.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The City pools money from several funds to facilitate
disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash
and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash
equivalents, The City, LTDA and the ABC Board consider all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a matutity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash and cash equivalents,

2a. Restricted Assets — Permanent Fund restricted cash of $255,746 represents the
nonexpendable portion of the cemetery funds. Customer deposits of $125,535 are also
shown as restricted cash.

3. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - According to the North Carolina General Statutes,
ad valorem taxes levied on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year, ate due September 1
but penalties do not accrue until the following January 6 when taxes are considered past
due and the property is subject to lien. The taxes levied are based on the assessed values
as of January 1, 2013. As allowed by State law, the City has established a schedule of
discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due date. In the City's General
Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

4. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - All receivables that historically expetrience
uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, This amount
is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior
years,

5. Inventories - Inventories of the City and ABC Board are maintained for all enterprise
fund supplies. They are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

6. Capital Assets — Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $1,000. The City and the ABC Board’s capital assets are
recorded at historical cost when purchased or fair market value at the time of donation.
Certain items acquired in earlier years are recorded at estimated historical cost. General
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002, consist of the road, bridges and
drainage networks that were acquired or that received substantial improvements
subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at estimated historical costs. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
exfend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The City's capital assets are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives

Infrastructure 15-50
Buildings 45 - 50
Plant and systems 45-50
Improvements 15-20
Vehicles 6-8

Furniture and equipment 10-15
Computer equipment 5-10

Capital assets of the ABC Boatd are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line
basis as follows:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Land, improvements and buildings 8-40
Store equipment 2-20
Office equipment 5-10

7. Long-Term Obligations — In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method.
Bonds payable, if any, are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount.
Bond issuance costs are expensed in the reporting in which they occurred. Prepaid
insurance costs and expenses over the life of the debt.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures,

8. Compensated Absences - The vacation policies of the City and the ABC Board
provide for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days earned vacation leave with such
leave being fully vested when earned, For the City’s government-wide and proprietary
funds and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is carned, The City has assumed a last-
in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that
is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in
the government-wide financial statements,

Both the City and the ABC Board's sick leave policies provide for an unlimited
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave
accurnulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither the City nor the ABC Board has
any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick
leave has been made.

9. Deferred Inflow of Resources — In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial
position will sometimes repoit a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
revenue until then, The city has two items that meet the criterion for this category —
property taxes receivable and memberships paid in advance,

10. Net Position/Fund Balance — Net position in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are classified as net investment in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through state statute.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)] restricts appropriation of fund balance or fund equity to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,

encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as these amounts stand at
the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year,

The governmental fund typeé classify fund balances as follows:
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Nonspendable Fund Balanee — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact, '

Prepaid Items — Portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents services rendered for the subsequent years, which are not spendable resources,

Perpetual Maintenance — Cemetery resources that are required to be retained in

perpetuity for maintenance of the City of Lenoir Cemeteries.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes exfernally imposed by creditors or imposed by law,

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statue - Represents the amount of revenue
recognized, but not available for appropriation. This amount is usually comprised of
receivables, not offset by deferred revenues, and due from other funds.

Restricted for Substance Control - Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying law enforcement expenditures,

Restricted for Public Safety — Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying public safety expenditures.

Assigned Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance that City of Lenoir intends to use for
specific purposes.

Assigned for Land Development — Portion of fund balance set aside for land
development.

Unassigned Fund Balance - Portion of fund balance that has not been restricted,
commitied, of assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

For purposes of fund balance classifications, funds are to be spent from restricted fund
balance first followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and last
unassigned fund balance.

F. Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America tequires management fo make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
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the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.

Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

G. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

1.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet

and the government-wide statement of net assets - The governmental fund balance
sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and
net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of net position. The net adjustment of $22,556,410 consists of several elements as

Tollows;

T TTDeserption T T Amount
) U Y T O I |
Capital assets in governnmental activitios are not financial  {{ 7

resources and are therefore not reported in the fiunds (total

capital assets on government-wide statement governmental

Liabilities for revenue are considered deferred inflows of

resources in the find statm [ - ‘~¢M“427F6u:§§“1—
resources in the find st L SN U 276,381 |
T
[Liabilities that, because they are not due and payablein ~ {i ~
the current period, do not require current resources to pay I
and ave therefore not recorded in the fund statements: |}

activities column) | 3 Awﬂgﬁ"—?_&:ﬁb—;i:élﬁ?;ﬁ
T e e 1 8 79,994,813
Less accumulated depreciation] ’_—'““ —————— 1 (49,564,401)
38 acoumutated depreciation! o

USSR ISR S RN BT R |
Net capital assets | | , 25,030,412

TR e 25,030,412
e . -

L PSP |

__(1,518,679)]

_Compensated absences

EPREY R

npatan ity = s B U SO

. (338,424)
(693,280)

Pension obligation {
et . o

1 $ 22,556,410 |

| SIS A S

i L
Totaladjustment | [ T e
s ! U
. ik N S SO,

b ]

2. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenucs, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide
statement of activities - The governmental fund statement of revenucs, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental
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activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are
several elements of that total adjustment of $(490,277) as follows:

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements
but capitalized as assets in the statement of activities $ 1,192,116

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over
their useful lves, is recorded in the statement of activities,
but nof in the fund statements (1,594,775)

New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of

fonds in the fund statements; it has no effect on the

statement of activities - it aftects only the government-wide (487,000)
statement of net assets

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of
funds in the fund statements but again affect only the
statement of net assets in the government-wide statements 493,910

Law Enforcement Separation Allowance expenses reported

in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

resourees to pay and are not recorded as expenditures in the

find statements 23,412

OPEB expenses reported in the statement of activities do not {29,140)
require the use of current resources to pay and are not recorded
as expenditures in the fund statements

Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide
statements but not in the fund statements because they do not
use current resources (38,764)

Sale of Fixed Assets recorded in the fund statement (22,159)

Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide
current resources are not recorded as revenues in the find

statements:
Recording of tax receipts in the fund statements (48,870)
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 20,993

Total adjustment $ (490277
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II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE and ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Execess of Expenditures over Appropriations - Yor the year ended June 30,
2014, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts at the department level as

follows:
Fund/Department Excess Fund/Department Excess
General Fund; Enterprise Fund
Administrative $18,174 Principal Paid $9,034
Sanitation 9,362 Capital Outlay 42,999

These over-expenditures were immaterial and approved by the Board subsequent
fo year-end. The city annually files a corrective action plan. It is the city’s
intention to amend their budget on a more timely basis in the future.

B. The Capital Project Fund had fund balance deficit of $324,230. The General
Fund will fund the deficit in future years. '

IIl. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A, Assets

1. Deposits - All of the City's, LTDA’s and ABC Board's deposits are either insured or
collateralized by using one of two options. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that
exceed the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with securities hold
by the City's or ABC Board's agent in the units' name, Under the Pooling Method, a
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agents in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting
in a fiduciary capacity for the City, LTDA and the ABC Board, these deposits are
considered to be held by the City's and the ABC Board's agents in their names. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-
interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits.

Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this
information with the unit or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
cxact amounts of collateral pledged for the City, LTDA or the ABC Board under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollateralization, and this risk may increase
in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces
strict standards of financial stability for each Pooling Method depository. The City,
LTDA and ABC Board have no policy regarding outstanding risk for deposits.

At year-end, the City's deposits, including fiduciary funds, had a catrying amount of
$3,320,857 and a bank balance of $3,489,559. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was
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covered by federal depository insurance with the remainder held in Pooling Method
depositories as discussed above,

At year-end, the ABC Board's deposits had a carrying amount of $226,887 and a bank
balance of $219,891. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

At year-end, the LTDA’s deposits had a carrying amount of $59,106 and a bank balance
of $59,106, The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

2. Investments - General Statute 159-30(c) authorizes the City and the ABC Board to
invest in obligations of the U. S, Treasury; obligations of any agency of the United States
of America, provided the payment of interest and principal of such obligation is fully
guaranteed by the United States; obligations of the State of North Caroling; bonds and
notes of any North Carolina government or public authority; obligations of certain non-
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers'
acceptances; and The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, an SEC-registered
mutual fund. The City pools monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and
investment and maximize investment income. The City and ABC Board have no policy
regarding credit risk for investments,

The City held no investments that were categorized by level or risk at year-end. All
invested funds were with The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, which is
exempt from risk categorization because the City does not own any identifiable
securities, but is a shareholder of a percentage of the fund, As of June 30, 2014, the
credit rating of the fund was AAAm by Standard and Poor’s, with a weighted average
matutity of 51 days. Total investments are as follows:

Carrying Fair
Value Value
North Carolina
Capital Management Trust $ 4,544,205 $ 4,544,205
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3. Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - The amounts shown in the
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the following allowances for

doubtful accounts:

General Fund:
Allowance for Uncollectible
Propeity Taxes Receivable
Allowance for Miscellaneous
General Fund Receivables
Subtotal
Water and Sewer Fund:
Allowance for Uncollectible

Water and Sewer Receivables

Total

4. General Capital Assets

$

1,322,399

27,035

1,349,434

$

200,000

1,549,434

The capital asset activity for the governmental activitics as of June 30, 2014 was as

follows:

Beginning BEnding
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Govermental activites:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land § 2920697 $ 41,088 $ 2,961,785
Construction work in progress 376,991 507,127 884,118
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,297,688 548,215 " 3,845,903
Capiltal assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 14,739,873 26,056 14,765,929
Infrastructure 43,122,548 12,398 43,134,946
Equipment 12,501,685 605,447 (259,097} 12,848,035
Total capital assets being depreciated 70,364,106 643,901 (259,097 70,748,910
Less accumnlated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 7,152,803 297,289 7,450,092
Infrastructure 30,856,871 660,316 31,517,187
Equipment 10,217,883 637,170 (257,931) 10,597,122
Total accumulated depreciation 48,227,557 § 1,504775 § (257.93 1} 49,564,401
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 22,136,549 21,184,509

Total capital assets - governmental activities

3 25,434,237

————um
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Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government
Public Safety
Transportation

Environmental Protection

Economic and Physical Development

Cultural and Recreational

Total Depreciation Expense

5. Business-Type Capital Asscts

$189,546
450,698
666,092
103,628

6,027

178.784

$1,594,775

The capital asset activity for the business-type activities at June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Business-type activitics (Water and Sewer Fund)
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital asseis being depreciated:
Plant and systems
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less aecumulated depreciation for:
Plant and systems
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Total capital assets - business type
activites (Water and Sewer Fund)

Beginning Ending

Balances Ingreases Decreases Balances
$ 239714 § 12,000 $ 251,714
15,009 302,362 317,371
254,723 314,362 - 569,085
61,213,867 61,213,867
6,455,750 107,999 (20,295} 6,543,454
67,669,617 107,999 (20,295) 67,757,321
20,262,329 1,015,598 21,277,927
2,899,360 215,037 (20,255) 3,094,102
23,161,689 5 1,230,635 (20,295) 24,372,029
44,507,928 43,385,292
$ 44,762,651 $ 43,954,377

6. Construction Commitments — The City of Lenoir has no active construction

projects as of June 30,2014,
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7. Component Unit Capital Assets

The capital assets of the ABC Board at June 30, 2014, are composed of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases  Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated: ‘
Fand $ 155,849 $ 155,849
Total capital assets not being depreciated 155,849 - - 155,849
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 563,616 173,213 736,829
Store equipment 171,065 171,065
Office equipment 49,272 49,272
Total capital assets being depreciated 739,496 173,213 - 957,166
Less accurnulated depreciation for;
Buildings and improvements 294,900 14,907 309,807
Store equipinent 120,354 11,802 132,156
Office equipment . 31,088 3,918 35,606
Total accumulated depreciation 319,249 § 30,627 % - 477,569

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 420,247
Total capital assets $ 576,096 $

B. Liabilities

1. Pension Plan Obligations

2. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

1. Plan Description, The City of Lenoir contributes to the statewide Local
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries; Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the North Catrolina General Assembly. The
Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of Notth Carolina,
The State's CAFR includes financial statements and requited  supplementary
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699.

2, Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their
annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially
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determined rate. For the City, the current rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 13.61% and 13.82%,
respectively, of annual covered payroll, The contribution requirements of
members and of the City of Lenoir are established and may be amended by ihe
North Carolina General Assembly. The City's contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014 were $1,164,712, $1,145,939 and
$1,148,073 respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year.

b, Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir administers a public employee
retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of
the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to
the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not
subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized
by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly, '

All full-time law enforcement officess of the City are covered by the Separation
Allowance, At December 31, 2013, the Separation Allowance's membership

consisted of*

Retirees currently receiving benefits 6

Terminated employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan membets - 51
Total 57

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Basis of Accounting, The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a
pay- as-you-go basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting,

Method Used to Value Investments, No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.
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3. Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide
these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-
you-go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget.
The City's obligation to conttibute to this plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly, There  were no contributions made
by employees. The annual required contribution for the current year was
determined as part of the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method, The actuarial assumptions included (a)
3.00% investment rate of return, compounded annually, (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of from 4.25% to 7.85% per year of
which 3.00% is assumed due to inflation and the balance to merit or seniority.
The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The City of
Lenoir has chosen not to set aside funds to pay benefits and administration costs,
These expenditures are paid as they come due.

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The City's annual pension cost
and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year arc as

follows:

Annual required contribution $91,282
Interest on net pension obligation 18,498
Adjustment to annual
required

pension contribution (26,882)
Annual pension
cost : $80,808
Employer Benefits Paid 104,310
Increase(decrease) in net pension obligation ($23,412)
Net pansion obligation baginning of

fiscal year 329,953
Net pension obligation end of year $306,541

The following schedule contains trend information for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012,
2013 and 2014.

2012 2013 2014
Annual pension cost 3 86467 § 83,157 $ 80,898
Percentage of APC Contributed 87.20% 115.89% 128,94%
Net Pension Obligation $ 343,168  $ 329,953  $ 306,541
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2013 Actuarial Assumptions;

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Investment Rate of Return 5.00%
Amortization Method ~ Level dollar closed Projected Salary Increase 4.25%-7.85%
Remaining Amortization 17 Years Includes Inflation at 3.00%
Asset Valuation Method ~ Market Value Cost of Living Adj. N/A

Required supplementary information including a Schedule of Funding Progress and
Schedule of Employer Contributions is presented in the Required Supplementary
- Information section immediately following these notes. A separate report is not issued.

¢. Supplemental Retirement Incoine Plan for Law Enforcement

1. Plan Description. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income
Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of
State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law
enforcement officers employed by the City. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly.

2. Funding Policy. Article 12E of G, S. Chapter 143 requires the City to coniribute
each month an amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts
contributed are vested immediately. Also, City employees may make voluntary
contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2014 were
$160,257 which consisted of $99,109 from the City and $70,148 from employees,

d. ABC Board - Local Government Employeces' Retirement System

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoit ABC Board contributes to the statewide
Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Government
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS, That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699.

2. Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their
annual covered salary, The ABC Board is required to contribute at an actuarially
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determined rate. The ABC Board's current rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement is 16,67% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
members and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly, The Board's contribution for the years ending June 30,
2012, 2013, and 2014 were $22,798, $26,743 and $28,085 respectively. The
contribution made or accrued by the ABC Board equaled the required contribution for
the period,

¢. Deferred Compensation Plan - The City offers its employces a deferred
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, The
Plan is administered by Public Employees Benefit Services Securitics Corporation. The
Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan assets ate not reported in the
City's financial statements.

f. Flexible Spending Plan - The City offers its employees a flexible spending plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Employees are able to
have deducted from their salaries, pre-tax, a specified amount to be used for eligible
medical and dependent care expenses. The plan assets are held for the employees and are
reported in the City's financial statements in the governmental funds,

g. Post-retirement Health Care Benefits - The City has adopted policies governing
postretitement health care benefits for retirees. The subsidies vary depending upon the
years of service of the retiree. The City pays 50 percent of the health care premium for
employees who retire with 30 or more years of service with the retiree paying 50 percent.
The City pays 25 percent of the health care premium for employees who retire with 20 to
29 years of service with the retiree paying 75 percent, Employees who retire with at least
15 years of service are allowed to remain on the City's health policy and pay 100 percent
of the premium. Retirees are allowed to have coverage for dependents and pay 100
percent of that premium, Additionally, at age 65 the retiree has the option to purchase a
Medicare supplement from the City's health care benefit provider at his expense with the
City ceasing to subsidize the premium. The City's regular health care benefit provider
underwrites the retiree's policies.

As of June 30, 2014, there were seventeen employees who had retired with 30 years of
setvice who were receiving the 50 percent-premium-coverage benefit and three
employees who had retired with sufficient years of service to receive the 25 percent-
premium-coverage benefits. The City finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the City recognized $64,851 of expenditures for
retiree health benefits or 0.74% of annual payroll. The current ARC rate is 1.21% of
annual covered payroll.
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Membership in the plan included the following at December 31, 2013, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation:

Public
General Safety
Emplovees Officers
Retirees receiving benefits 8 16
Active plan members 146 122
Total 154 138

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Post-employment expenditures
are made from the City’s General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they become due,

2. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City’s annual OPEB cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial Habilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s
net OPED obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual Required Contribution $ 106,337
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 5,544
Adjustment to Annual Required (5,130)
Contribution _—
Annual OPEB Cost 106,751
Contribulions Made —(64,851)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 41,900
Net OPEB Liability, Tuly 1, 2013 $406,363
Net OPEB Liability, June 30, 2014 $448,263

The City’s annnal OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation are as follows:
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Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year  Annual OPER Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost_ Contribyted Liability
2014 $106,751 70.0% $448.263
2013 $82,143 87.3% $406,363
2012 $111,670 74.8% $395,952
2011 $209,836 40.76% $367,821
2010 $79,417 125.16% $243,508
2009 $164,091 55.63% $164,091

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits, and thus, the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $1,126,070. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8,754,716. Actuarial
valvations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of repotted amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
acciued liabilities for benefits.

3. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical patiern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members at that point, The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit eredit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4% investment rate
of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment returns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost frend
increase of 9.5 % to 5%. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
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period at December 31, 2011 was 30 years. Assumed inflation rate of 3.00% was
also used.

The following schedule contains the required supplementary information
including a Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer
Contributions, A separate report is not issued.

Actuarial Accrued
Actuatial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL asa %
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded of Covered
Valuation Asseis Credit (UAAL) Ratio Covered  Payroll
Date (a) b (b-a) (a:b)  Payroll {b-a:c)
1273172011 $o - $1,126,070 $1,126,070 0% $8,754,716 12.9%
12/31/2008 $o $1,717,145 $1,717,145 0% $8,514,138 20.25%
Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
2014 $106,337 70.0%
2013 $81,890 87.6%
2012 $111,670 ' 74.8%
2011 $209,836 40.76%
2010 $79,417 125.16%
2009 $164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information
as of the latest valuation follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2011

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Pay Open
Remaining Amortization Period 30 Years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

50




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 4.0%
Includes Inflation at - .3.00%
Medical Cost Trend Rate 9.5%- 5.‘0%
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

The information presented for the years ending June 30, 2010, 201 1, 2013 & 2014 was
determined by using the alternative measurement method. )

2. Other Employment Benefits - The City provides death benefits to law enforcement
officers through the Death Benefit Plan for members of LGERS. The beneficiaries of those
employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the
System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or fermination of service and have at
least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are
eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaties are equal to
the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the
employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $20,000. All death benefit payments are
made from the Death Benefit Plan, The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly
contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the
post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The City considers these
contributions to be immaterial.

" 3, Payables — Payables and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2014 were as follows at the
government-wide level:

Vendors Benefits Total
Governmenial Activities: $ 392,975 - $ 392,975
Business-type activities: $ 207,661 $ 207,661
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

4. Deferred Inflows of Resources — Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised
of the following:

Unavailable Unearned

‘Taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 276381 $ -

5. Risk Management - The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuties to employees; and natural
disasters. The City participates in two self-funded risk-finaneing pools administered by the
North Carolina League of Municipalities. Through these pools, the City obtains general
Liability and auto liability coverage of at least $2 million per occurrence, property coverage
up to the total insurance values, and worker's compensation coverage up to the statutory
limits,

The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single occurrence claims
against general liability, auto Hability and property in excess of $500,000, and $300,000
up to statutory limits for wotkers' compensation. The property liability pool has an
aggregate limit for the total property losses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit
based upon a percentage of the total insurance values. The City's health insurance
provides unlimited lifetime coverage for in network and $1 million for out of network.
The City does not carry flood insurance.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

In accordance with G.8. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access top $100 or more
at any given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial
surety bond. The finance officer and tax collector are each individually bonded for
$100,000 each.

The Lenoir ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters, The Board has property genetal liability; auto liability, workmen's
compensation and employees” health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal liability
coverage. There have been no significant reductions in coverage fiom the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

6. Long-Term Obligations

a. Drinking Water Revolving Loan
The City of Lenoir has received a loan to replace the Whitnel Pump Station. As of June
30, 2014 the loan balance was $2,381,828 at an interest rate of 2.485% for a term of 20
years.

b. Drinking Water Revolving Loan
The City of Lenoir has received a loan for raw water intake improvements. As of June
30, 2014 the loan balance was $3,287,443 at an interest rate of 2.22% for a term of 20
years.

¢. Installment Purchase Contracts
The City has entered into installment purchase contracts to finance the purchase of

cquipment and installation/puichase of utility lines. A summary of installment purchase
contracts follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

PAYMENT AMOUNT
DESCRIPTION COST DATE TERM RATE FREQUENCY
Water and WW plant

residuals management

refinancing annexation lines

§ 8,360,000 12724/2003 17.5 years 3.20% $302,907
: semi-annual

Water & Sewer lines - '

Town of Hudson $ 1,206,484  11/12/2003 15 years 3.97% $67,465

semi-annual

Utility Line Extension - A

Phase 12001 Annexation $ 3,237,053 6-27-02 15 years 1.72% $137,579 semi-annual
Utility Line Extension -

Phase 1T 2001 Annexation $ 2,658,000 12/2/02 15 years 1.93% $113,927 semi-annnal
Utility Line Extension -

Phase 11T 2001 Annexation $ 1,550,000 6/19/03 15 years 1.93% $65,567 semi-aniual
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant

renovations and utility line

construction $ 2,700,000 6/30/2005 15 years 2.31% $88,019 semi-annyal
Whitnel Pump Station $2,977,285 117172010 20 years 2.485% $219,009 semi-annual
Streetscape, Recreation, $1,410,000
& Downtown 8/27/2013 8 years 2.49% $49,878 semi-annual
Utility Line Projects $1,190,000
Capital Equipment $526000  1/6/2011 4 years 2.16% $34,404 quarterly
Capital Equipment $355,000 1/19/2012 4 years 1.90% $23,083 quarterly
Capital Equipment $487,000 542014 4 years 1.36% $31,325 quarterly
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The following summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and the liability for the separation
allowance for law enforcement officers):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Installment Contracis
2015 398,039 23,004 1,511,863 90,752
2016 253,022 16,595 869,707 58,497
2017 208,841 12,472 1,005,610 42,315
2018 179,198 . 8,652 498,651 22,610
2019 85,859 5,879 262,680 13,520
2020-2024 171,720 5,345 367,278 9,087
Total 1,296,679 . 72,037 4,515,789 236,781
Section 108 Loan
2015 108,000 - 8,540 - -
2016 114,600 2,901 - -
Total 222,600 11,441 - -
Revolving Loans
2015 - - 331,500 132,050
2016 - - 331,500 124,305
2017 - - 331,500 116,558
2018 - - 331,500 108,812
2019 - - 331,500 101,065
2020-2024 1,657,502 389,131
2025-2029 1,657,502 135,053
2030-2034 - - 696,767 88,837
Total - - 5,669,271 1,195,811
Total Debt Due $ 1,518,679 % 83,478 $ 10,185,060 $§ 1,432,592
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year-ended June

30,2014: '

Governmental activities:
Installment purchase contracts
Compensated absences
Section 108 Loan

Pension obligation

Post employment benefits

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Installment purchase contracts
Revolving loan

Compensated absences

Post employment benefits

Total business-type activities

Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2013 Additions Payments 2014 Liabilities

_$ 1,201,580 & 487,000 $ (391,910) § 1,296,679 § 398,039
499,660 38,764 ‘ 538,424 298,000
324,000 (102,000) 222,000 108,000
329,953 (23,412) 306,541 -
357,599 29,140 386,739 -

$ 2712801 § 554904 % (517,322) '§ 2,750,383 $ 804,039

Current

Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2013 Additions " Payments 2014 Liabilities

$ 6,060,089 $ (1,544,300) $ 4,515,789 § 1,511,863
6,243,763 (574,492) 5,669,271 331,500
112,740 10,578 ' 123,318 72,000

48,764 12,760 61,524
$ 12465356 $ 23,338 § (2,118,792) § 10,369,902 $ 1,915,363

For the governmental activitics compensated absences are liquidated by the General

Fund, and for the business-type activities compensated absences are liquidated by the

Water and Sewer Fund.

At June 30, 2014, the City of Lenoir had a legal debt margin of $132,304,486.
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e, Interfund Activity
1. Transfers in (out) for the year ended June 30, 2014 are summarized below:

Transfer In

Special
General Revenue Nonmajor
Fund Fund Governmental "Total

Transfer Out

General Fund § - % 75,000 3% 120,000 § 195,000
Total transfers out $ - % 75000 § 120,000 $ 195,000

Transfers fiom the general fund to the special revenue fund and nonmajor governmental
fund were matching funds used primarily to support the operations of the funds.

2. Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2014 are composed as follows:
Receivables Payables

General Fund $191,871
Non-Major Governmental Funds $191,871

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from working capital loans and are
to be reimbursed in the subsequent year.

f. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the
portion of General fund balance that is available for approptiation;

Total fund balance — General Fund $5,748,769
Less:
Stabilization by State Statute 1,444,335
Substance Control 35,007
Public Safety 297.927
Remaining Fund Balance $3,574,740
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IV. JOINT VENTURES

The City, in confunction with the City of Morganton, County of Caldwell, and County of
Burke participates in a regional airport known as the Foothills Regional Airport Authority
(Airport Authority). The Airport Authority was established by act of the North Carolina
General Assembly, Session Law 2000-9, House Bill 1517, and ratified June 14, 2000.
The Airport Authority is successor in interest to the former Morganton-Lenoir Airport
Authority. Each participating entity appoints two members to the eight-member board.
The Airport Authority is a joint venture established to facilitate economic expansion
within the area and improve the quality of life for City citizens, The airport has been in
existence since 1945. The City is not responsible for financing any deficits of the Airport
Authority nor is it entitled to any surpluses. The City does not approve the budget of the
Airport Authority. The City occasionally contributes to the Airport Authority but is not
bound to do so. The City contributed $25,546 to the Airport Authority during the year
ended June 30, 2014.

The participating entities do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements ai June 30, 2014. Complete
financial statements for the Airport Authority can be obtained from the airport's
administrative offices at P. O. Box 3448, Morganton, NC 28680,

V. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The City, in conjunction with four counties and twelve other municipalities established
the Western Piedmont Council of Governments (Council) in 1971. The participating
governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received from federal
and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the Council's
governing board. The City paid approximately $168,335 for membership fees and
miscellaneous services to the Council during the year ended June 30, 2014,

VI. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The four-member board of the City of Lenoir Housing Authority (Housing Authority) is
appointed by the mayor of the City of Lenoir. The City is accountable for the Housing
Authority because it appoints the governing board; however, the City is not financially
accountable for the Housing Authority. The City of Lenoir is also disclosed as a related
organization in the notes to the financial statements for the Housing Authority.

VII. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIELS AND
COMMITMENTS .

A. Federal and State Assisted Programs - The City has received proceeds from several
federal and State grants, Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant.
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Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial, No provision has
been made in the accompanying statements for the refund of grant money., -

VIIL Subsequent Events

- Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 10, 2014, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Required Supplementary Information

This section contains the following additional information required by
generally accepfed accounting principles: Schedule of Funding
Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance, Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance and Schedule of
Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB).




City of Lenoir, North Carolfina

Required Supplementary Information
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actuarial Accrued Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) » Unfunded Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets  Prof. Unit Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payrolf
Date (a) {b) {b-a) (alb) (c) {(b-a)/c))
12/31/2013 $ ~ $§ 893438 § 893438 0.00% § 1,981,423 45.09%
12/31/2012 $ - § 834,008 $ 834999 0.00% § 1,882,355 44.12%
12/31/2011 $ - $ 746570 $ 746,570 0.00% $ 2,039,207 36.61%
1213172010 $ - % 805420 .5 805420 0.00% $ 2,151,298 37.44%
12/31/2008 $ - % 884,789 § 884,789 0.00% § 1,993,571 44.38%
12/31/2008 $ - § 769,785 $ 769,785 0.00% $ 1,998,704 38.51%
12/31/2007 $ - § 708,037 $ 708,037 0.00% & 1,955275 36.21%
1213112006 $ - § 687345 $ 687,345 0.00% $ 1,917,798 35.84%
1213172005 $ - $ 675,027 $ 875027 0.00% $ 1,930,693 34.96%
12/31/2004 3 - & 674,050 $ 674,050 0.00% § 1,887,698 3571%
Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution Contributed
6/30/2014 $ 91,282 114.27%
6/30/2013 $ 98,372 110.32%
6/30/2012 $ 89673 84.08%
6/30/2011 $ 90,295 108.88%
6/30/2010 $ 75,825 148.28%
6/30/2009 $ 70,725 158.28%
6/30/2008 $ 68,204 120.58%
6/30/2007 $ 69,202 105.64%
6/30/2006 $ 71,731 89.70%
6/30/2005 5 64,728 89.02%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the lalest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date
Acluarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization

Period

Asset Valuation Method

1213112011
Projected Unit Credit
Level percent of pay

19 Years
Market Value

closed

60

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increase
Includes Inflation at
Cost of Living Adjustments

5.00%

4.25% - 7.85%
3,00%

N/A




City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Other Post - Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actuarial Accrued Payroli for Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL)~  Unfunded  Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets Proj. Unit Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payroll
Date {a) (b} {b-a) {a/b) (c) __[{b-a)Me))

12/3172011  § - $ 1,126,070 $ 1,126,070 0.00% 3% 8,754,716 12,86%

12/31/2008  $ - $ 1,717,145 % 1,717,145 0.00% $ 8514138 2017%

Schedule of Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Annual
Required Percentage
Confribution Confributed
6/30/2014 $ 106,337 * 60.99%
6/30/2013 % 81,800 * 87.60%
6/30/2012 $ 111,670 74.80%
6/30/2011 $ 209,836 * 40.76%
6/30/2010 $ 79,417 * 125.16%
6/30/2009 $ 164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011 was determined as part
of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Armortization Method

Remaining Amortization

Period

Asset Valuation Method

1213172011

Projected Unit Credit
Level percent of Pay, open

30 Years
Market-Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return ~ 4.00%
Includes inflation at 3.00%
Medical Cost Trend Rate 9.5 -5.0%
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

* - The information presented for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2011, 2013 and 2014 was determined by using the
alternative measurement method.
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General Fund

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in other funds.

This fund receives ad valorem tax revenue, local option sales taxes,
Sfederal- and stafe-shared revenues, licenses, permits, and fees. The
major operating activities include general government, public safety,
public works, parks and recreation, and other governmental service
functions.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2014
(Schedule 1)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Other receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable Property Taxes
Total deferred inflow of resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute
Substance Control
Public Safety
Assigned
Land Development
Unassigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances
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2014

4,398,116
276,381
711,861
540,603
191,871

6,118,832

93,682

276,381

276,381

1,444,335
35,607
297,927
396,760

3,574,740

5,748,769

6,118,832




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

{Schedule 2, Page 1)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
REVENUES: BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Ad valorem taxes
Taxes - Net of discounts 7,120,792 % 7,477,156 356,364
Penalties and interest 85,100 116,417 31,317
Total 7,205,892 7,593,573 387,681
Other faxes and licenses:
Local option sales tax 3,371,947 3,311,542 (60,4G5)
Privilege licenses 200,000 162,778 (37,222)
Motor vehicle tags 71,500 38,640 (32,860)
Gross receipts on rental vehicles 4,000 3,270 (730)
Total 3,647,447 3,516,230 {134
Unresiricted intergovemniental revenues:
Utilities franchise tax 1,925,000 1,963,089 43,089
Beer and wine tax 85,000 78,422 (6,678)
Total 2,010,600 2,046,411 36411
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
State Street - Aid allocation 560,000 571,645 11,645
Grants 175,000 206,500 31,500
Substance Control 26,000 13,847 (12,153)
Total 761,000 791,992 30,992
Permits and fees:
Public safety fees and charges 191,000 178,700 {12,300)
Public works fees 20,000 9,772 (10,228)
Planning department fees and charges 6,000 3,100 (2,900)
Total 217,000 191,572 (25,428}
Sales and services:
Bulk container service and sales 1,500 3,668 2,168
Solid waste fees 625,000 622,819 2,181)
Cemetery lois and marker sales 100,000 81,214 (18,786)
Recreation depariment fees-
centers and parks 87,940 69,660 (18,2380)
Recreation department fees-
aquatic/fitness center 124,750 135,159 10,409
Congessions 7,000 2310 2,310
Telephone coltection fees 12,000 27,069 5,069
Fire line charges 230,000 204,582 (25,418)

63
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General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditares and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Aetual
TFor the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 2, Page 2)
2014
YARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
REVENUES {Continued)
Sales and services (Continued}
Rentals $ 13,500 % 13,200 (300)
Vehicle maintenance contracts 400,000 394,667 (5,3313)
‘Totat 1,601,650 1,561,348 {40,342)
Interest on investments 27,200 2648 (24,552)
Miscellaneous:
Contribulions 66,120 128,120 32,000
Other 165,500 187,688 22,188
Tofal 261,620 315,808 54,188
Payment from Compaonent Unit:

City of Lenoir ABC Board
Law enforcament 7,500 4,433 (3,061
Profit distribution 200,000 218,900 13,900

Totsl 207,500 223,333 15,833
Tolal revenues 15,939,349 16,242,915 303,566
EXPENDITURES
General Government:

Administrative: .
Salaries and wages 724,989 704,126 20,863
Personnel benefits 218,359 210,534 7,825
Professional services 52,560 148,980 (56,480)
‘Felephone and postage 27,500 15,487 12,013
Utilities 16,000 15,062 938
Travel and training 40,000 48,681 (8,681)
Maintenance - building and equipment 16,000 6,491 9,509
Advertising and printing 8,000 10,188 (2,188)
Tax collection fees 15,000 36,363 (21,363)
Supplies 61,500 65,222 (3,722)
Contracted services 140,500 153,115 (12,615)
Dues and subseriptions 46,0600 41,872 4,128
Insurance and bonds 31,352 42,784 (11,432)
Contribution fo Foothills Reglonal

Adrport 25,546 25,546 -
Economic development 249,000 242,726 6,274
Capital improvements and equipment 166,120 126,862 39,258
Qther operating expenses 114,318 113,173 I,145
Reimbursement of administrative

costs for Water Fund (324,200) (320,554 (3,616)

Total Administrative 1,628,484 1,646,658 (18,174)
Building Maintenance:
Salaries and wages 179,504 179,502 2
Personnel benefits 72,362 72,361 1
Telephone and postage 2,000 2,299 (299)
Travel and training 500 - 500
Maintenance - building and equipment 28,000 15,493 12,507
Supplies 5,000 4,400 600
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Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

{Schedule 2, Page 3)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
General Government {Continued)
Building Maintenance {Continued)
Uniforms 3 2600 § 1,968 3 632
Contracted services 500 3,380 (2,880)
insurance and bonds 7,500 6,636 864
Other operating expenses 2,500 795 1,705
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund (12,000) (13,563) 1,563
Total Building Maintenance 238,466 273,271 . 15,195
Engineering:
Salaries and wages 110,726 110,720 6
Personnel benefils 38,341 37,873 448
Profissional services 143,000 134,162 8,833
Telephone and postage 5,000 2,802 2,198
Utilities 19,700 17,070 2,630
Maintenance - building and equipment 9,500 17,962 (8,462)
Travel and training 1,560 544 956
Supplies 2,800 2,327 473
Uniforms 650 875 (225)
Contracted services 138,000 185,790 2,210
Dues and subscriptions 1,100 933 167
nsurance and bonds 15,100 13,360 1,740
Other operating expenses 1,800 2,525 (725)
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund (44,000) {16,971) (7,02%)
Total Engincering 493,217 489,972 3245
Cemotery:
Salaries and wages 27498 23,008 4,490
Personnel benefits 11,546 10,155 1,391
Telephone and postage 1,000 1,919 (919)
Uiilities 12,000 6,137 5,863
Maintenance - building and equipment 4,000 5,366 (1,366)
Supplies 6,000 7,810 (1,810}
Uniforms 400 . 400
Contracted services - 5,070 (3,070)
Purchase for resale 66,000 70,805 (4,805)
Insurance and bonds 8,600 5,839 761
Other operating expenses 1,500 84 Lile
Total Cemetery 136,544 136,193 351
Vehicle Services:
Salaries and wages 113,762 1475 2,287
Personnel benefits 51,786 52,304 (518)
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Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 2, Page 4)
2014
VARIANCE
* POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Confinued}
Qeneral Government {Continued)
Vehicle Services (Continued)
Telephone and postage $ 2,000 3 2,254 (254)
Utilities 14,650 16,809 (2,159)
Maintenance - buitding and equipment 18,000 30,524 (12,524)
Travel and fraining 4,000 7,297 {3,297}
Pepartmental supplies 96,000 £1,042 14,958
Uniforms 3,000 4,348 (1,348)
Contracted services 2,060 1,250 750
Capital improvements and equipment 487,000 491,034 (4,034)
Insurance and bonds 9,900 8,75% 1,141
Other operating expenses 363,100 363,529 429
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund _(95,000) (103,298) 8,298
Tatal Vehicle Services 1,070,198 1,067,327 2,871
Total General Government 3,616,909 3613421 3,488
Public Safety:
Police:
Salares and wages 2,667,919 2,585,963 81,956
Personnel benefits 1,023,044 1,007,602 15,442
Professional services 4,000 2,038 1,962
Telephone and postage 64,630 54416 10,214
Utilities 28,000 27,968 32
Travet and training 30,560 39,389 (8,829)
Maintenance - building and equipment 240,300 292,063 (51,763)
Supplies 53,800 76,367 (22,567}
Uniforns 31,090 50,623 {19,533)
Contracted services 142,770 149,393 (6,623)
Insurance and bonds 147,000 134,358 12,642
Substance Control 11,000 13,325 {2,325)
Police benefit 10,000 8,540 1,460
Capital improvements and equipment 2,335 (2,135)
D.ARE. 6,000 3,577 2,423
Explorer Post 246 2,000 1,912 88
Adopt-A-Cop 5,000 - 5,000
Other operating expenses 15,850 29475 (13,625)
Total Police 4,482,963 4,479,344 3,619
Fire:
Salaries and wages 1,881,017 1,548,105 {67,088)
Personnel benefits 785,837 753,871 31,966
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Supplemental Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 2, Page 5)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Confinued)
Pubtic Safety (Continued)
Fire {Continued)
Professional services s 1,000 § - $ 1,000
Telephone and postage 17,590 11,335 6,255
Utilities 36,782 41,932 (3,150)
Travel and {raining 16,000 14,836 1,114
Maintenance - building and equipment 163,000 152,059 10,941
Supplies } 33,180 21,872 11,308
Uniforms 29,800 19,216 10,584
Contracted services 34,500 35,442 (942)
Dues and subseriptions 5,000 3,982 1,018
Insurance and bonds 91,650 83,426 8,224
Other operating expenses 15,000 12,313 2,687
Tota) Fire 3,110,356 3,098439 11,917
Total Public Safety 7,593,319 7,577,783 15,536
Transportation:
Streets:
Salaries and wages 401,763 375478 26,285
Personnel benefits 165,894 152,745 13,149
Professional services 10,000 4,294 5,706
Telephone and postage 3,000 615 1,385
Utilities 350,000 359,278 (9,278)
Travel end training 1,500 97 1,403
Maintenance - building and equipment 140,000 165,488 (25,488)
Street repairs and mainienance 501,000 470,001 30,999
Supplies 8,000 17,193 (5,193)
Street signs and pavement marking 65,000 42,797 22,203
Uniforms 6,650 5,932 Ti8
Capital improvements and eguipment 36,653 (36,653)
Insurance and bonds ) ’ 34,559 31,981 2,578
Reimbursement of administrative
¢osts for Water Fund (45,000} (30,720) {14,280)
Other operating expenses 6,000 1,989 4,011
Totat Transporiation 1,648,366 1,634,821 13,545
Environmental Protection:
Sanitation:
Salarics and wages 294,316 285,811 8,505
Personnel benefits 136,272 125,762 10,510
Telephone and postage 10,000 9,692 308
Travel and training 1,500 574 - 926
Maintenance - building and equipment 147,000 163,572 (16,572)
Supphics 2,500 2,511 {11)
Advertising and printing 1,600 - 3124 (2,124)
Insurance and bonds 28,000 30,558 {2,558)
Uniforms 5,000 5,849 (849)
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

{Schedule 2, Page 6)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Environmental Protection (Continued)
Sanitation (Continued}
Purchascs for resale 6,200 6,200
Tipping fees 63,000 65,291 (2,291)
Recyeling services 25,000 35,507 (10,507)
Other operating expenses 2,700 3,599 (899)
Total Envirenmental Protection 722,488 731,850 (9,362)
Economic and Physical Development:
Downtown District:
Salaries and wages 69,410 58,601 10,809
Personnel benefits 25412 18,936 6,476
Professional services 2,000 1,210 750
Telephone and postage 2,400 2,726 (326)
Travel and training 2,000 2,548 (548)
Maintenance - equipment and streetscape 4,000 3,465 535
Advertising and printing 6,000 4411 1,589
Departmental supplies 2,809 1,624 1,185
Contracted services 13,000 18,272 (5,272)
Events and promations 5,000 3,092 1,908
Facade incentive grants 15,000 7,571 7,429
Bues and subscriptions 2,500 1,143 1,357
Other eperating expenses 204,800 180,378 24,422
Total Downtown District 354,331 303,977 50,354
Planning:
Salaries and wages 173,607 177,794 (4,187)
Personnel benefils 76,037 62,319 13,718
Professional services 5,000 7,071 {2,071)
Contracted services 5,500 4,506 (4,006)
Telephone and postage 5,000 3370 1,630
‘Travel and training 4,500 3,149 1,351
Maintenance - cquipment 5,300 1,963 3,337
Advertising and printing 4,000 1,355 2,645
Supplies 6,605 9,600 (2,995)
Dues and subscriptions 2,500 2,223 277
Insurance and bonds 13,700 12,121 1,579
Capital improvements and equipment - 3,164 (3,164)
Building demolition - 4,200 (4,200)
Other operating expenses 1,500 4,134 {2,634)
Reimbursement for adminisirative -
cosis for Water Fund (47,800} {55,913) 8,113
Total Planning 255,449 246,056 9,393
Total Economic and Physical
Development 609,780 550,033 59,747
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
General Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014,

(Schedule 2, Page 7)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Culture and Recreation:
Recreation Centers and Parks:
Salaries and wages $ 410,782 3 414,075 (3,293)
Personne] benefits 150,259 143,640 6,619
Professional services 1,600 - 1,000
Basketball league 9,500 - 7,052 2,448
Softball & baseball leagues 10,000 4,054 5,946
Miscellaneous leagues and programs 52,826 60,460 (1,634)
Harambeo Festivaf 9,500 11,843 (2,343)
Telephone and postage 13,982 8,320 5,662
Utilities 91,000 95,088 (4,088)
Travel and training 7,800 6,618 1,182
Insurance and bonds 33,300 33,431 (131)
Maintenance - building and equipment 103,000 106,815 (3,815}
Supplies 47,420 39,119 8,301
Dues and subscriptions 250 - 250
Adverlising and printing 5,500 7,122 (1,622)
Uniforms 1,812 1812
Contracted services 24,085 25,125 (1,040)
Concessions and purchases for resale 10,000 3,022 6,978
Otirer operating expenses 7,965 4250 3,715
Total Recreation Centers and Parks 989681 970,034 19,947
Aquatic and Fitness Center;
Salaries and wages 261,641 262,171 (530)
Personnel benefits 82,187 81,554 633
Miscellaneous leagues and programs 500 - 500
Telephone and postage 4,050 1,814 2,236
Ulilities 80,000 74,879 5,121
Travel and {raining 3,076 4,893 (L8I7
Maintenance - building and equipment 20,500 25,248 (4,748)
Supplies 41,026 41,584 (558)
Uniforms 1,238 1,152 86
Advertising and printing 6,342 1,216 5,126
Contracted sarvices 12,825 10,086 2,739
Dues and Subscriptions 500 (243) CT43
Concessions and purchases for resale 6,500 5,091 1,409
Insurance and bonds 7,800 6,901 899
Gther operating expenses 2,012 11,214 (9,202)
Total Aquatic and Fitness Center 530,197 527,560 2,637
Landscaping:
Salaries and wages 154,341 147,854 6,487
Personnel benefits 55,148 62,092 {6,944)
Telephone and postage 2,000 1,851 149
Utitities ' 4,000 1,923 2,077
Travel and training 2,000 112 1,888
Maintenance - building and equipment 36,000 35,699 301
Supplies 30,000 25,257 4,743
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budgef and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 2, Page 8)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Cutture and Recreation (Continued)
Landscaping (Continued) .
Uniforms 3 3,000 2,505 g 495
Contracted services - 1,050 (1,050)
Capital improvements and equipment 10,000 10,000y
Insurance and bonds 2,192 2,470 322
Other operating oxpenses 3,000 631 2,369
Total Landscaping 292 281 291,444 837
Totzl Culture and Recreation 1,812 459 1,789,038 23421
Debt Service:
Principal 426,133 391,910 34,223
Interest 38,895 33,791 5,104
Total Debt Service 465,028 425701 39,327
Total BExpenditures 16,468,349 16,322 647 145,702
REVENUES OVER/UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (529,000) (19,7132) 449,268
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES):
Appropriated fund balance 212,000 (212,000)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 25,000 22,159 (2,841)
Instaltment purchase issuance 487,000 487,000 -
Transfers out;
To Special Revenue Fund (75,0000 (75,000) -
To Capital Projects Fund (120,000} (120,000} -
Total other financing sources (uses) §29,000 314,159 (214,841)
REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES .
AND OTHER USES 3 - 234,427 234,427
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 5,514,342
End of year $ 5,748,769

70




Special Revenue Fund

The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

The only fund so specified by the City is the Grants Program Fund to
account for grant revenues and related expenditures. Included are the
Jollowing projects: Governor’s Highway Sufety Grant; Fit Community
Grant; PARTF Grant; CDBG Entiflement Programs, and Unifour
HOME Consortium Programs.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2014
(Schedule 3)
2014
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,107
Other receivables $ 69,500
Total assets $ 157,607
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 4 2,526
Total liabilities 2,526
Fund balances:
Unassigned 155,081
Total fund balances 155,081
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 157,607
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014
{Schedule 4, Page 1)

Actual
Variance
Project - Prior Cunent Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date {Negative)
GOVERNOR'S IHIGHWAY SATETY GRANT:
Revenues;
Infergovernmental 10,000 24,516 6,741 31,257 21,257
Intercst eamned on investments - 1 - 1 1
Total revenues 14,000 24,517 6,741 31,258 21,258
Expenditures:
Deparimental Supplics 3,000 5,636 5,636 (2,636)
Training 3,000 4,985 349 5,334 (2,334)
Capital equipment 4,000 16,030 4,457 20487 {16,487)
Totel expenditures 19,000 26,651 4,806 31,457 (21,457
Expenditures (over) revenues - 2,134y 1,935 (19%) (199
FIT COMMUNITY GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovemmental 65,000 55,799 - 55,799 {9,201}
Bxpenditurcs:
Dept Supplies 125,000 123,725 2,860 126,585 {1,585)
Total expenditures 125,000 123,725 2,860 126,585 (1,585)
Expenditures (over) revenues (60,0000 {67,926) (2,860) (70,786) (10,786)
PARTF GRANT
Revenues:
Intergovemmental 175,000 88,305 53,449 141,754 {33,245
Expenditures;
Dept Supplics ; 160,600 45,075 64,325 109,400 (9,400}
Contract Services 50,000 - - - 50,000
Capital Expenditures 200,000 172,076 172,076 27,924
Total expenditures 350,000 217,151 64,325 281,476 68,524
Expenditures (over) revenues {175,000 {128,846) (10,876) (139,728 35,278
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City of Leneir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Anthorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended Jime 30, 2014

(Schedule 4, Page 2)

2011 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:

Revenues:
Tntergovernmiental

Expenditures:
Bebt prineipal
Deht Interest
Administration
Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Expenditures:
Debt principal
Debt interest
Administration
Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

2013 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenues;
Titergovernmental

Expenditures:
Drebt principal
Debt interest
Administration
Total expenditures

Expenditures {over) revenues

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive

Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
131,696 110,078 21,612 131,690 -
105,352 92,000 - 92,000 13,352

- 23,567 - 23,567 (23,567

26,338 26,338 - 26,338 -
131,690 141,905 - 141,905 (10,215)

- (3.,827) 21,612 (10,215) (10,215)

147,527 29,050 94,241 123,291 {24,236}
118,477 96,000 102,000 198,000 (79,523}

- 18,844 13,854 32,698 (32,698)

29,050 29,050 29,050 -
147,527 143,894 115,854 259,748 (112,221}
- (114,844) (21,613) (136457 {136,457

155,258 31,052 31,052 {124,206)
124,206 - 124,206
31,052 31,052 31,052 -
155,258 . 31,052 31,052 124,206
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 4, Page 3)

2011 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTIUM:
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Program income
Total revenue

Expenditures:
Downpayment assistance
Program Income
CHDO
Administration
Multi-family housing

Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

2012 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTIUM:
Reveiues:
Intergovernmental
Program income
Total revenue

Expenditures:
Downpayment assistance
Program Income
CHDO
Adminjsiration
Multi-family housing

Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

Actual
Variance
Praject Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date {Negative)

1,036,727 908,940 127,787 1,036,727 -

100,000 132,739 - 132,739 32,739

1,136,727 1,041,679 127,787 1,169,466 32,739

394,545 360,545 360,545 34,000
100,000 122,239 . 122,239 (22,239)

155,510 27,723 127,787 155,550 -
103,672 148,172 148,172 (44,500)

383,000 383,000 383,000 -
1,136,727 1,041,679 127,787 1,169,466 {32,139
824,401 168,279 359,047 527,326 (297,075}

150,000 207,353 207,353 57,353
974,401 375,632 359,047 734,679 (239,722)

450,300 112,839 287,046 399,885 50415
150,000 151,603 33,280 184,883 {34,883)

123,661 - - 123,601
82,440 105,440 31,000 136,440 {54,000}

168,000 - 7,000 7,000 161,600

974,401 365,882 . 358,326 728,208 246,193

- 5,750 721 6,471 6,471
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014
{Schedule 4, Page 4)

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorlzation Years Year To Date (Negative)
2013 UNIFOTR HOME CONSORTIUM:
Revenues:
Intergovernmental ’ 777,392 201,964 201,964 (575,428)
Program incoms 200,000 227,229 227,229 27,229
Total revenue 977,392 429,193 429,193 (548,199)
Expenditures;
Downpayment assistance 312,175 124,693 124,695 187,480
Program Income 200,000 11,283 11,283 188,717
CHDO 155,478 . 155478
Administration 77,739 71,767 71,767 (28)
Mukti-family housing 232,000 - 232,000
‘Total expenditures 977,392 213,745 213,745 763,647
Expenditures {over) revenues - - 215,448 215,448 215,448
Expenditeres (over) revenues - alf grants $ (235,000) $ (339,827) § 204367 § (135460) $ 99,540
Other financing sources:
Transfers from Generat Fund 235,000 163,269 75,000 238,269 3,269
Expenditures (over) revenues - all grants 8 - $  (176,558) 279367  § 102,809 § 102,809
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year (124,286)
End of year $ 155,081
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds include the Capital Projects Fund
and the Permanent Fund,




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2014
(Schedule 5)
Capital Total Nonmajor
Project Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted - 255,746 255,746
Other receivables 164,408 805 165,213
Total assets $ 164,408 § 256,551 % 420,959
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 296,767 $ - 3 296,767
Due to other finds 191,871 - 191,871
Total liabilities 488,638 “ 488,638
Fund balances: -
Restricted Cementary Care - 256,551 256,551
Unassigned . {324,230) - (324,230)
Total fund balances (324,230) 256,551 {67,679)
Total liabilities and fund balances 5 164,408 § 256,551 8§ 420,959
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajer Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 6)
Capital Total Nonmajor
Project Permanent Governmental
Fund Fuand Funds
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues $ 164,408 § - 8 164,408
Investment earnings - 237 237
Miscellaneous 2,745 - 2,745
Total revenues 167,153 237 167,390
Expenditures
Current;
Capital projects 507,123 - 507,125
Total expenditures 507,125 - 507,125
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {339,972) 237 (339,735)
Other financing sources (uses)
From General Fund 120,000 - 120,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 120,000 - 120,000
Net ehange in fund balances {219,972) 237 (219,735)
Fund balance - beginning {(104,258) 256,314 152,056
Fund balance - ending $ (324,230) & 256,551 % {67,679
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General Capital Project Fund

The General Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to
be used for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary funds and ftrust funds.
Projects are the Fairview Street Bridge, Downtown Streetscape and
Greenway.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Capital Project Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended Tune 30, 2014

(Schedule 7, Page 1)
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date {Negative)
STREETSCAPE PROJECT:
Revenues:
NC municipal agreement 650,000 599,215 - 369215 (50,785)
Contributions from Qutside Agency 25,000 25,800 25,800 soo
Interest carned on investments - 71,822 - 71,822 71,822
Paver revenue 44,700 156,562 2,745 159,307 114,607
Total revenue 719,700 853,399 2,745 836,144 136,444
Expenditures;
Engineering 81,350 134,556 - 134,556 (52,706)
Paving Harper Ave 400,000 350,210 - 350,210 49,790
Construction 1,484,650 1,227,453 1,227,453 257,197
Public Square 169,700 446,868 103 446,971 (277,271)
Contingency 45,500 - - - 45,500
Total expenditures 2,181,700 2,159,087 103 2,159,190 22,510
Expenditures (over) revenues (1,462,000} {1,305,688) 2,642 (1,303,046) 158,054
GREENWAY PROJECT:
Revenues:
NCDOT grant 181,235 183,035 - 183,035 1,800
Clean water trust fund grant 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -
Contributions from Outside Agency - 14,080 - 14,080 14,080
Inferest carned on investments - 2,164 - 2,164 2,164
Property contributfon 189,400 189,400 - 189,400 -
Fotal revenue 410,635 428,679 - 428,679 18,044
Bxpenditures:
Administrative 4,200 70,786 - 70,786 {66,586)
Property acquisition 632,492 229,885 - 229,885 402,607
Construciion 544,436 862,218 11,761 873,979 (329.493)
Total expendifures 1,181,178 1,162 889 11,761 1,174,650 6,528
Expenditures (over) revenues (770,543) {734,210) (11,761) (745,971) 24,572
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Capital Project Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 7, Page 2)
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Totat Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date {Negative)
FAIRVIEW BRIDGE
Revenues:
NC Highway Grant 720,000 150,379 164,408 314,787 (405,213) .
Expenditures:
Engineering 200,080 207,215 23,093 230,308 (30,308)
Constraction 700,080 472,168 472,168 227,832
Total expenditures 900,030 207215 495,261 702,476 197,524
Expenditures (over) revenues {180,000y (56,836) {330,853) (387,689) {207,689)
Expenditures (over) under revenues - all projects (2,412,543) (2,096,734} {339.972) (2,436,706) {24,163)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES(USES):
Financing issuances 1,604,500 1,094,550 - 1,394,550 (509,950)
Transfer from General Fund 808,043 596,700 120,000 716,700 (91,343)
Total other financing sources 2,412,543 1,691,250 120,000 1,811,250 (601,298)
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 5 - (405,484} (219,972) § (625456) 3 (625,456)
Fund balance beginning of year 301,226 (104,258)

Fund balance end of year

S (104,258)

$  (324,230)
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Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund accounts for Perpetual Cemetery Cure.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Permanent Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance -Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 36, 2014

{Schiedule 8)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGEF ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
Interest earned on investments 237 237
Total revenues 237 237
Revenues over expenditures 237 237
Revenues and other sources under expenditures
and other uses 237 237
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year 256,314
End of year $ 256,551
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Agency Fund

The Agency Fund accounts for payments received by the City of Lenoir
and remitted to CheckFree Pay on behalf of Duke Energy and Flexcare
payments.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
Yor Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
{Schedule 9)
July 1,2013 Additions Deductions June 30, 2014
Check¥rec Pay
Assels _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,516 § 32,900 $ 25,735 § 18,681
Total assets $ 11,516 % 32,900 § 25735 8§ 18,681
Liabilities
Due to other funds 3 1,516 $ 32,900 § 25735 § 18,681
Total jabilities $ 11,516 § 32,500 § 25,735 8§ 18,681
Flex Spending
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 745§ 55426 8 49,192 § 6,979
Total assets 3 745 8§ 55426 8 49,192 § 6,979
Liabilities .
Due to other funds 3 745§ 55426 8§ 49,192 % 6,979
Total Habilities $ 745§ 55426 $ 49,192 § 6,979
Total All Agency Funds
Assetls
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,261  § 88,326 § 74,927 & 25,660
Total asscts $ 12261 § 88,326 S 74,927 § 25,660
Liabhilitics
Due to other funds $ T12261  $ 88,326 § 74,927 § 25,660
Total liabilities $ 12,261 § 88326 $ 74,927 % 25,660
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Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner sinilar to private business enterprises —
where the intent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the
government’s council has decided that periodic determination of net
income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the City’s water filtration and
distribution and wastewater collection and treatment operations.




City of Leneir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Supplemental Balance Sheets

June 30, 2014
(Schedule 10}
2014
Assets
Current assets )
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,973,883
Accounts receivable {net) 574,638
Inventories 61,973
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents 125,533
Total current asseis 3,736,029
Noncurrent assets
Capital assels, net 43,954,377
Total nencurrent assets 43,954,377
Total assets 47,690,406
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 207,661
Installment purchase contracts - ¢urrent 1,511,863
Revolving loan payable - current 331,500
Customer deposits 125,535
Compensated absences payable 72,000
Total current liabilities 2,248,559
Noncurrent liabilitics
Revolving loan payable 3,337,111
Installment purchase coniracts payable 3,003,926
OPEB Liability 61,524
Compensated absences payable 51,318
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,454,539
Total liabilities 10,703,098
Net Poesition
Net investment in capital assets 33,769,317
Unrestricted Net Position 3,217,991
Total Net Position $ 36,087,308
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 11, Part I)
2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Operating revenues:
Water sales $ 5,141,873 $ 5,077,965 $ {63,908)
Wastewater (reatment charges 2,620,675 2,610,365 (10,310)
Water and sewer taps 22,000 26,200 4,200
Late payment/reconnect fees 230,000 233,345 3,345
Miscellaneous 188,000 419,534 231,534
Total operating revenues 8,202,548 8,367,409 164,861
Nonoperating revenues: ’
Interest on investments 2,000 1,410 {590)
TOTAL REVENUES $8,204,548 $8,368,819 ' $164,271
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Expendltures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

{Schedule 11, Part II, Page 1}

2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE

EXPENDITURES; BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Rhodhiss Weter Treatment Plant; ’

Salaries and wages $ 278511 % 266,684 % 11,827

Persannel benefits 119,011 113,164 5,847

Telephone and postage 2,700 3,606 (906)

Utilities 263,000 360,171 (97.171)

Travel and training 1,900 2,194 (294)

Maintenance:

Building and grounds 16,000 2,305 7,695
Equipment 180,000 152,941 27,059
Motor equipment operation and mainfen: 7,600 7,305 {305)
Departmental supplies 15,000 17,986 {2,986)
Uniforms 3,000 3,094 (%4
Conlracted services 85,000 69,376 15,624
State testing 17,000 7,071 9,929
Chemicals 209,667 174,783 34,884
Insurance and bonds 22,842 20,210 2,632
Utility service fees 105,147 112,204 (7,057)
Miscellaneous 8,700 5,886 2,814

Total Rhodhiss Water Treatment
Plant 1,328,478 1,318,980 9,498
Water Distribution:
Salaries and wages 410,769 382,829 27,940
Personnel benefits 165,429 152,286 13,143
Professional services 5,000 1,980 3,020
Telephone and postage 38,000 53,267 (15,267
Utilities 55,600 30,200 24,800
Travel and training 1,500 1475 25
Maintenance:

Equipment 7,000 14,044 {7,044)
Distribution system 49,000 24,938 24,062
Motor equipment operation and mainten 52,000 99,228 (47,228)
Departmental supplies 95,000 75,992 19,008
Unifosms 4,000 1,902 2,098
Insurance and bonds 68,000 61,243 6,757
Contracted services 80,000 97,323 (17,323)

Service extensions 5,000 - R
Subdivision reimbursement - 1,440 (1,440}
Miscellaneous 20,500 16,483 4,017
Utility service fees 105,147 112,204 (7,057)
Economic development 13,000 5,152 7,848
Tota! Water Distribution 1,174,345 1,131,986 42,359
Water Resources
Salaries and wages 255,801 265,879 (10,078)
Personnel benefits 93,965 97,312 (3,347)
Professional services 123,806 136,407 (12,601)
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Cliy of Lenoly, North Carolina

Extlerprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplentental Schedule of Expendifures - Budget and Actnal (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedute 11, Part II, Page 2)

2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES (Continued) BUDGET ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
Water Resources (Continued)
Travel and training $ 2,500 § 4207 8§ (1,707
Tetephone and postage 3,500 2,989 5Ht
Equipment maintenance 26,000 8,186 17,814
Motor equipment operation and mainter 15,400 22,371 (6,971)
Departimental supplies 5,000 2,579 2421
Uniforms 1,200 1,803 (603)
Contracted services 30,981 1,281 29,700
Insurance and bonds 950 881 69
Miscellaneous 15,850 2,713 13,137
Total Water Resowces 574,953 546,608 28,345
Wastewater Collection
Salaries and wages 127,072 153,004 {25,932)
Personnel benefits 54,878 55,951 (1,073)
Professional services 15,600 4,179 10,821
Telephons and postage 1,080 942 58
Utilities 19,500 32,043 (12,543)
Travel and tratning 1,500 062 538
Maintenance;

Equipment 8,000 1,819 6,181
Sewage collection system 52,124 37,793 14,931
Motor equipment operation and mainten 350,000 64,356 (14,356)
Departmental supplies 15,000 8,444 6,556
Uniforms 2,500 2,500 -

Contracted services 20,000 13,165 6,835
Subdivision reimbursement 5,000 1,440 3,560
Insurance and bonds ' 53,309 48,043 5,766
Miscellaneous 5,500 3,492 2,008
Service extensions 5,000 - 5,000
Utility service fees 105,147 112,204 (7,057
Total Wastewater Collection 541,630 540,337 1,293
Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant;
Salaries and wages 286,250 297,473 (11,223)
Personnel benefits 121,057 119,422 1,635
Professional services 5,000 1,641 3,359
Telephone and postage 4,000 3,069 931
Ultilities 420,000 463,857 (43,857)
Travel and training 2,000 1,000 1,000
Maintenancs:
Building and grounds 5,600 1,717 3,283
Equipment : 94,000 98,573 (4,573)
Motor equipment operaticn and mainten: 15,000 20,303 (5,303)
Departmental supplies 20,000 36,385 (16,385)
Uniforms 1,500 2431 {931)
Coniracted services 7,500 14,067 (6,567)
Chemicals 180,000 83,845 91,155
Insuranee and bonds 23,203 20,738 2465
Miscellaneous 7,560 2477 5,023
Utility service fees 105,147 112,204 (71,057)
Total Lower Creck Wastewater
Treatment Plant 1,297,157 1,284,202 12,953
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schednte of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Nen-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 11, Part If, Page 3}

2014
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES (Continued) BUDGET ACTUAL {(NEGATIVE)
Gunpowder Wastewater Treatment Plant;
Salarfes and wages ) 48,006 3 43006 § -
Personnel benefits 15,906 15,505 401
Professjonal services 26,092 3,33 22,761
Telephone and postaps 3,000 3,894 (894)
Utilities 143,000 180,448 {37,448)
Travel and training 00 - 5060
Maintenance:
Building and grounds 6,500 365 6,135
Equipment 12,000 26,377 (14,377)
Motor equipment operation and maintesy 13,000 15,392 (2,392}
Departmental supplies 10,000 8,482 1,518
Uniforms 1,600 1750 (150)
Contracted services 41,000 4,094 36,906
Chemicals 60,000 69,028 (9,028)
Insurance and bonds 17,605 15,576 2,029
Miscellaneous 57,630 466 57,164
Utility service fees 105,147 112,204 {1,057}
Total Gunpowder Wastewater
Treatment Plant 560,986 504,918 56,068
Wastewater Pretreatment:
Salaries and wages 100,610 97,970 2,640
Personnel benefits 38,490 36,512 1,978
Travel and fraining 250 . 250
Equipment mainfenance 1,000 - 1,600
Motor equipment operation and mainten 2,000 1,592 8
Uniforms 450 389 61
Supplies 14,000 17,783 (3,783}
Contracted services 30,000 28,218 1,782
Miscellaneous 1,000 214 786
Total Wastewater Prefreatment 187,300 183,078 4,722
Budgetary appropriations:
Interest paid 364,441 339,813 24,628
Debt principal . 2,108,758 2,118,792 (9,034)
Capital outlay:
Equipment 65,000 107,399 {42,999}
Total budgetary approprintions 2,539,199 2,566,604 {27.405)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 8204548 $ 8076713 & 127,835
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

{Schedule 11, Part I1I)

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual basis:

2014
Actual

Total revenues and other financing sources on

Schedule 7, Part I, Water and Sewer $ 8,368,819
Total expenditures on Schedule 7, Part 11,

Water and Sewer 8,076,713
Reveiues and other sources over (under)

expendiiures and other uses: 292,106
Reconciling items:

Debt principal 2,118,792

{Increase) decrease in OPEB Liability (12,760)

Increase(decrease) in Inventory (8,609)

Capital outlay 107,999

{Increase) decrease in accrued vacation pay (10,577}

Depreciation expense (1,230,635)

Total reconciling items 964,210

Change in Nat Position (Exhibit G} 5 1,256,316
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Enterprise Capital Project Fund

The Enterprise Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources
fo be used for the acquisition and construction of major water and
sewer capital facilities. Projects are the Gunpowder Creek WWTP

Improvements and Powell Road Greenway Sewer.




City of Lencir, North Cardlina
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Nen-GAAP) -
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Schedule 12, Page 1)
Total Variance
. Project Prior Current To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Gunpowder Creek WIWTP Improvements
Revenues;
Clean Water Trust Fund Grant $ 3,850,600 - $ (3,850,000)
Total revenues 3,850,000 - - - (3,850,000)
Expenditures:
Engineering 493,000 1,749 269,163 270,912 {222,088)
Construction 3,052,000 - (3,052,000)
Contingency 305,000 - (305,000}
Closing Fee 77,000 - (77,600)
Total expenditures 3,927,000 1,749 269,163 270,912 (3,656,088)
Expenditures (under) revenues
Other financing sources (itses):
Transfers from Water Fund 77,060 - (77,000)
Total Other financing sources{uses): 77,000 - - - (77,000}
Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses - (1,749 (269,163} {270,912) (270,912)
Powell Road Greenway Seaver:
Revenues: )
Clean Water Trust Fund Grant 3 578,500 - (578,500)
Total revenues 578,500 - - - {578,500)
Expenditures;
Engineering 66,060 13,260 12,000 25,260 (40,800)
Administration 11,570 33,199 33,199 21,629
Construction 488,040 - (488,040)
Contingency ‘ 24,400 - (24,400%
Tofal expenditures 590,070 13,260 45,199 58,459 (531,611
Expenditures (under) revenues {11,570) (13,260) (45,199) (58.459) (46,889)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from Water Fund 11,570 - (11,570)
Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses $ - $ (13,260) § (45199 § (58459) $ (58,459)
Total Water and Sewer Capifal
Project Fund § - 3 (15009 § (314,362) §  (329,371) &  (329.37)
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Additional Financial Data

This section contains the following additional financial data: Schedule
of Cash and Investment Balances, Schedule of Ad Valoremn Taxes
Receivable, and Analysis of Current Tax Levy.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Schedule of Cash and Investment Balances
June 30, 2014
{Schedule 13)

Cash and Investments in the form of:
Cash:

OCn hand

In demand deposits

In certificates of deposit

Total Cash

Investments - North Carolina Capital
Management Trust
Term Trust

Total Cash and Investmentis

Distribution by Funds:
Governmental Fund types
Enterprise Fund

Total

Cost Value Fair Value

1,985 1,985
759,800 759,908
2,635,288 2,535,288
3,297,182 3,297,182
1,538,484 1,536,484
3,007,721 % 3,007,721
7,841,387 $ 7,841,387
4,741,969 4,741,969
3,089,418 3,099,418
7,841,387 7,841,387




City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2014

{Schedule 14)
Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Balance and Balance
Year 7M/2013 _Additions Credits 8/30/2014
2013-2014 $ - % 7,797,646 $ 7,367,200 § 430,346
2012-2013 385,408 112,629 272 87¢
20112012 265,953 40,523 225,430
2010-2011 201,793 45,379 246,414
2008-2010 60,843 13,476 47,367
2008-2009 . 147,991 39,209 108,692
2007-2008 101,450 3,933 97,617
2008-2007 76,049 5,308 70,740
2005-2008 69,276 2,378 66,897
2004-2005 34,286 1,788 32,408
2003-2004 40,532 40,532 -
Total _ 3 1473581 $§ 7797546 % 7,672,347 1,698,780
Less allowance for uncollectible
ad valorem taxes receivable:
Ad valorem and vehicle $ 1,285,241
Downtown Service District 37,158 1,322,399
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 3 276,381
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes (Schedule 2) $ 7,693,673
Discounts allowed 146,470
Prior year releases 9,115
Amounts written off per statute of limitations 39,608
Subtotal 7,788,764
Less penalties and interest collected 116,417
Total collections and credits $ 7,672,347
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City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Analysis of Current Tax Levy
June 30, 2014

{Schedule 15}
Total Levy
Total Property
Property Amount of Excluding Motor
Vatuation Rate Levy Vahicles Vehicles
Original levy: ,
Ad Valorem $ 1,651670,803 § 058 § 9,249,357 $ 9,248,357
Downtown Service District 11,428,800 0.25 28,667 28,667
Motor Vehicles:
General 136,972,321 0.56 767,045 $ 767,045
Downtoym Service District 32,800 0.25 82 $ 82
Discoveries 285,132 285,132
Releases (2,632,637) (2,603,351) (28,288)
Total for year 1,800,102,814 7,787,646 7,069,705 737,841
Less uncollecled tax at
June 30, 2014 {schedule 14) 430,346 384,306 46,040
Current year's taxes collectad $ 7,367,200 § 6,675,399 § 691,801
Percant current year collected 94.48% 94.56% 93.76%
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Lenoir’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the Cify’s overall financial health,

Contents

Financial Trends .
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time,

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the City’s ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the gffordability
of the City’s current levels of understanding debt and the City’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indictors to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules confain information about the City’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the City’s financial information
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City
implemented Statement 34 as of June 30, 2003; tables presenting government-wide
information include information beginning in that year.




Table 1

City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Net Position by Component,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basls of accounting)
(unaudited)

Governmental activities
Net Invesiment in capilal assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governinentat aclivities net position

Business-typs acthvilies
Net Invesiment In capital assels
Unrestricted

Total business-type aclivities net position

Primary government
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government nat position

Governmenlal aclivities
Net Investment In capital assels
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total govermnmenta! activities net position

Business-lype aclivilles
Net investment In capltal assets
Unreslricted

Total business-type aclivities net position

Primary government
Net investment In capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government nat position

Filscal Year

2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009
$ 22081411 22394419 § 22,797,645 22,986,647 § 24,262,072
535,140 793,977 887,159 1,102,846 762,328
3,202,086 3,820,178 6,041,203 8,416,440 5,440,585
$ 25708837 27008574 § 20,728,097 30,505,733 §  30,445.865
$ 22,091,119 22,480,872 §  23,447.459 24,623,804 $ 26,673,159
$ 1,972,867 4430821 % 5,984,845 6,086,897 $ 4,853,315
$ 24,083,988 26,021,693 § 29432305 30,710,801 § 31,526,474
$ 44,162,530 44885201 § 46,245,104 47610641 8 50,926,131
535,140 793,977 887,159 1,102,646 752,328
5,174,953 8,250,909 12,026,139 12,503,337 10,293,880
$ 49,862,623 53930267 $ 59,158,402 61,216,624 $ 61,872,339
Fiscal Year
2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012.2013 2013-2014
§ 23,881,197 24,687,510 § 24,742,318 23908648 $ 23,008,646
319,048 2,068,669 1,628,404 2,000,733 2,090,733
5,996,460 3,405,229 2,749,865 2,589,418 2,669,418
$ 30,196,705 30251438 § 29,120,587 28,688,799 $ 28,688,799
$ 28,630,531 30,152,606 & 31,523,163 32,458,799 $ 32,458,799
$ 3,208,275 3602725 $ 3,311,422 3272493 $ 3272193
$ 31,698,806 33755331 § 34,834,585 35,730,992 § 35,730,092
$ 52,611,728 54,840,116 § 56,265,481 58,367,447 § 57,281,050
319,048 2,068,699 1,628,404 2,090,733 2,033,820
9,204,735 6,329,412 6,061,287 5,861,611 6,066,019
$ 62,035,511 63,238,227 $ 63,855,172 64,319,791 § 65,379,859
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Table 2, (Pags 1)

Clty of Lenoir, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Flscal Years

{accrual basls of accounting}

" (unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General govemment . 3 2,454,329 § 2,287,280 S 25632003 § 2,842,285 § 3,147,449
Public safety 7,476,799 7,367,978 7,671,236 7,782,866 8,462,402
Transportation . 2,001,950 1,987,133 1,877,492 1,864,505 2,278,315
Environmental protection 734,858 709,224 815,014 745,097 754,872
Economic and physlcal development 2,161,581 2,232,939 1,580,064 1,920,170 1,453,317
Cuiture and recreation 1,645,599 1,650,517 1,836,837 1,603,285 2,234,821
Interest and fees 04,776 96,311 203,560 186,902 158,792
Tolal govemmental activities expenses 16,469,592 16,331,382 16,216,285 17,261,110 18,489,968
Business-fype activities: o
Water and sewer 5,960,258 6,180,758 6,742,217 6,740,801 6,780,236
Total primary govemment expenses $ 22440850 $ 22512140 § 22068602 § 23902011 § 26,280,204
Program Revenues
Governmental getivities:
Charges for services:

General government $ 842158 $ 919369 $ 300,365 § 273,237 § 498,629

Publil safety 79,986 177,690 323,431 339,085 161,214

Transportation 12,316 32,916 355,179 AGB 496 -

Environmental protection 14,958 452,279 454,131 515,359 625,142
Economic and physical development 7.648 5,625 276,684 210,111

Culture and recreation 163,557 152,553 207,022 151,973 225,302
Operaling grants and contributions 2,534,668 2,956,330 3,787,830 2,258,081 1,831,041
Capital grants and contributions 1,632,924 391,764 802,339 304,448 800,431

Total governmental activities program revenues 5,178,118 5,088,513 6,230,297 4,676,263 4,241,870
Business-typs activities: :
Charges for services:

Water and sewer 6,799,186 7,011,120 7,803,997 7,474,691 7,472,724
Operating granis and contributions - - - - -
Capital grants and contiibutions 365,400 1,580,880 1,163,382 12,979 -

Total business-type aclivities program revenues 7,164,688 8,692,010 8,957,389 7,487,670 7,472,724
Total primary govemment program revanues $ 12,342,701 § 13,680,523 § 16,187,686 $ 12,162,033  § 11,714,594
Net {(Expense)Revents

Gavernmental activiles $  (11,201477) § (11,242,869) § (9,985088) & (12,675847) S (14,248,098}
Business-type activities 1,184,328 2,411,262 2,216,172 746,769 682,488
Tatal primary government net expense $  (10,107,149) § (8,831,617) 8 {7,770,816) § {11,829,078) §&  (13,665610)
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Table 2, {Page 2)

Clty of Lenolr

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{acorual basls of accounting)
{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
. 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2006-2007 2008-2009
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Positlon
Govemmental activities:

Ad valorem taxes $ 6,404,153 $ 7051806 & 6,985,180 3 6,995,180 & 8,076,972

Other taxes ard licenses 2,844,846 2,992,602 3,249,329 3,249,329 3,717,692

Unrestiicled intergovemmentat 1,272,767 1,165,617 1,244,682 1,244,882 1,817,749

Miscellaneous 792,211 837,806 765,656 765,656 435,693

Gain (foss) on sale of fixed assals 112,461 51,084 25,852

Transfers (86,371) - - -

Payment from ABC Board 218,371 207,863 164,229 164,229 202,227

Interest earned on Investments 53,823 146,230 284,435 284,435 122,035
Total governmental activities 11,612,051 12,462,806 12,703,511 12,703,511 14,188,230
Business-fype activities:

Miscellaneous 151,235 274,373 37,880 37,650 55,100

Galn (Joss) on sale of fixed assels - - - - :

Transfers 86,371 - - - .

Interest earned on Investments 65,885 172,082 257,750 257,750 77,995
Total business-fype aclivilies 303,491 446,455 295,440 295,440 133,085
Total primary govemment $ 11,915,542 § 12,899,261 $ 12,988,951 $ 12,998,961 $ 14,321,325
Changes In Net Posttion
Governmental activitles $ 320,674 § 1,200,937 § 2717623 % 127664 & {69,868)
Business-type aclivilles 1,487,818 2,887,707 2,610,612 1,042,209 815,583
Total primary government $ 1,808,383 § 4,067,644 $ 5228136 § 1,169,873 § 755,715
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Tabte 2, (Page 3)

City of Lenclr, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2008-2010 2010-2011 20112012 2012-2013 2013-2014
Expenses
Governmental activitios:

General goverament 3 2688903 § 2521169 $ 3185638 & 3048921 § 3,'179,927

Public safety 8,474,676 8,609,721 8,215,430 8,207,917 8,048,078

Transportation 2,128,506 2,531,705 2,097,876 2,347,838 2,261,006

Environmenta! protection 772,091 829,268 703,246 855,159 842,366

Economie and physical development 1,955,860 1,683,780 2,197,798 1,355,971 1,282,460

Culture and recreation 2,025,347 2,051,873 2,196,855 2,007,287 2,040,197

Interast and fees 124,370 106,965 ©0,971 65,476 47,645
Tola) governmental activities expensas 18,169,843 17,934,622 18,697,714 17,886,568 17,701,769
Business-type actvities:

Waler and sewer 7,012,770 6,748,649 7,049,311 6,961,985 7,112,339
Total primary government expenses $ 05182613 $ 24683171 $ 25747026 § 24848563 & 24,814,108
Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:

Charges for services:

General government $ 664,933 8§ 777,846 $ 1,069,898 3 410,011 8§ 516,150

Public safety 196,711 184,263 180,689 441,362 383,282

Transporiaticn 19,926 21,151 29,707 19,484 9,772

Environmental protection 562,743 556,164 629,383 630,546 626,488
Economic and physical development 238,413 106,171 4,881 2,300 3,100

Culture and recreation 253,693 216,891 212,195 263,552 214,129
Oparating grants and contributions 2,227,292 2,006,622 2,871,333 1,685,037 1,702,476
Capital grants and contributions 752,229 868,037 202,102 366,146 225,658

Tolal governmental activities pregram revenues 4,915,860 4,747,345 5,180,158 3,787,438 3,681,054
Business-type activitles:

Charges for services:

Water and sewer 7,220,490 7,241,793 7,575,832 7,777,598 7,247,875
Operaling grants and contributions - 1,374,704 B - -
Capital grants and centribuilons - - 500,000

Total business-type aclivities program revenues 7,220,490 8616,497 8,075,832 7,777,598 7,947,875
Total primary government program revenues $ 12,136,360 § 13,363,842 $ 13265091 § 14,565,036 $ 11,628,929

Net (Expense){Revenue
Gavammental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government nef expense

$ (13,253,983} § (13.187.177)

207,720

1,867,848

&  {13,507,555)
1,028 521

§  (14,099,130)
815,613

$§  (14,020,715)
835,536

$ (13,046,263} §  (11319,329)

$  (12,481,034)

3 (13,283,517)

$  (13,185179)
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Table 2, {Page 4)
City of Lenoir
Changes in Net Position

. Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basls of accounting)
{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
General Revenues and Other Changes In Net Position
Governmenial activitles:
Ad valorem taxes $ 7206622 % 7,370,866 § 6,824,494 3 7614078 § 7,544,703
Other taxes and licenses 3,470,622 3,762,008 3,840,310 3,002,124 3,616,230
Unresticted intergovernmantal 1,464,035 1,524,091 1,639,300 1,743,940 2,046,411
Miscellaneous 598,575 220,488 86,751 260,959 469,942
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assels 29,816 16,794 (74,023) 20,993
Payment from ABC Board 216,980 207,532 219,868 213,630 223,333
interest earned on investments 18,273 10,351 7,163 6,664 2,885
Total governmental activitles | 13,004,823 13,104,334 42,534,689 13,567,342 13,824,497
Buslness-lype activities:
Miscelianeous 94,046 44,429 49,674 78,318 419,534
Interest earmed on investments 9,666 4,248 3,059 2,476 1,246
Total business-type activities 104,612 48,877 52,733 80,704 420,780
Tolal primary government S 13,109,435 § 13,163,011 8 12,687,422 § 13,648,136 $ 14,245,277
Changes fn Nat Position .
Govemmental aclivities 8 (249,160) § (82,843) $ {972,868) $ (631,788) S {196,218)
Business-type activitles 312,332 1,916,525 1,079,284 896,407 1,266,316
Total primary government 5 63,472 § 1,833682 § 408,388 § 364619 8 1,060,098
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Table 3
City of Lenolr, North Garollna

Fund Bafances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modified aceryal basls of accounting)

{unawiled)

Genaral Fund
NonSpendable
Restricted
Asslgned
Unassigned

‘Total general fund

AN Othar Governmental Funds
HonSpandable
Restricted
Unassignad

Tolat all other govemmental funds

General Fund
NonSpendable
Reslricied
Aassigned
Unassigred

Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
HonSpendable
Restricled
Unasskaned

Tolal aR other governmental funds

Fiscal Year
2004-2006 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2008
$ 1,769,710 % 2,120,509 § 3,414,011 3,626,760 2,408,565
2 024,865 2,285,977 3,188,161 3,319,100 3,653,831
$ 37948675 & 4,408,488 $ 6,602,162 § 5,844,860 § 5,152,398
$ 276356 § 779,05 $ 230543 § 240783 % 248,177
152,026 491,232 695,096 952,521 520,420
$ 428881 & 1,270,285 § 925620 $ 1,163,304 § 768,507
Fiscal Year
2009-2010 20162011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$ 29608 § 34843 8 6,827
2,118,002 2,012,161 1,762,840 1,827,502 1,777,268
610,557 555,984 488,478 266,760
3,760,253 2,808,417 3,028,662 3,211,745 3,674,740
$ 6876255 § 5548733 $ 5382200 § 5514342 § 5,748,769
5 251441 $ 263,653 § 265,181 § 268314  § 256,651
187,512
(238,358} (316,786} (228,544) (169,148}
$ 438053 § 15195 _§ {61,605) § 21770 § 37,402
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Table 4, (Page 1)
City of Lenclr, North Carolina

Changes In Fund Batances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modifled accrual basls of accountng)
{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009
Revenues
Ad valorem laxes $ 6,352,008 § 7004808 $ 7.021,088 § 7,058,008 8,127,462
Olher taxes ar:id kcenses 2,844,646 2,992,602 3,249,329 3,904,985 3,717,692
Unrestricted ntergavernments] rovenues 1,272,757 1,185,817 1,244,682 1,424,792 1,617,749
Rastricted intergovernmental revenuss 2,137 488 3,263,485 3,050,189 2,974,918 2,877,185
Permits and fees 168,753 136,040 138,612 142,832 183,048
Sales and services 941,870 1,609,588 1,501,618 1,603,518 1,422,774
Invastment earnings 53,623 146,230 284,435 288,351 122,034
Miscellansous 2,122,215 1,027,206 2,265,656 339,070 194,550
Payment from ABG Board 218,371 207,863 164,229 162,752 202,227
Tolal revenuas 16,711,929 17,493,438 18,069,716 17,840,905 18,454,728
Expendltures
General government 2,321,369 2,171,212 3,648,958 2047106 3,884,002
Pubfc safely 7,153,289 7,080,079 7,288,512 7,448,694 7,845,638
Transporlation 1,188,640 1,176,854 1,062,932 1,232,217 1,479,813
Envircnmental pretection 675,589 653,224 548,288 702,619 625,713
Economic and physical developmant 2,162,500 2,355,938 1,690,722 2,038,156 1,505,638
Cultwral and resreation 1,411,359 1,507,834 1,676,888 1,660,371 2,138,932
Capital outiay 2,462,304 3,275,177 930,585 529,984 1,164,897
Debt service: )
Interest 94,775 08,281 203,660 146,795 168,763
Princlpal 601,834 17440 837,537 1,086,630 031,228
Total expenddures 18,071,626 19,035,039 17,808,761 17,761,072 20,224,745
Excess of revenuss over (under) expenditures {1,359,697) {1,542,601) 1,162,865 168,833 (1,770,017)
Other Financing Sources (Uses}
Proceads from Installment purchase 1,§99,300 2,454,000 1,189,297 305,000 621,653
Proceads from disposal of capital assels 112,461 1,084 38,640 31,103
Transfersin 265,635 173,726 285,946 300,000
Translers ot (352,006) {173,725) (285,846) (300,000)
Total other financing sources (Uses) 1,225,390 2,505,084 1,189,297 341,640 852,848
Heal change In fund balances $ (534307 $ 962,463 § 2342252 % 510,373 HA17,171)
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expandiiwes 4.46% 5.18% 6.17% 7.03% b5.72%
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Table 4,{ Page 2)
CHy of Lenoir, North Caroilna

Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modifled acorval basls of accounting)
{unaudited)
Flscal Year R
2009-2010 2010-2011 2041-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
Revenues
Ad vakorem laxes $ 7,274,284 $ 7245878 § 7020833 $ 7455803 $ 7,503,673
Other laxes and ficenses 3,470,522 3,762,006 3,840,310 3,002,184 3,516,230
Unrestricled intergovernmental revenues 1,464,038 1,524,001 1,538,300 1,743,940 2,046,411
Reastiicted itergovemmental revenues 1,116,852 939,084 3,224,873 2,050,183 2,079,522
Perm'ts and feas 117,800 169,692 196,648 200,737 191,672
Sales and services 1,481,369 1,551,101 1,869,626 1,538,618 1,561,348
Investment eamings 14,678 8,788 7463 6,564 2,885
Wiscellansous 542,745 219,647 8,764 260,959 318,553
Payment from ABG Board 216,930 207,632 219,868 213,630 223,333
Total revenues 16,693,367 15,657,619 17,805,261 17,370,628 11533427
Expenditures
Genaral govemmynt 2,485,008 2,303,427 3,001,812 2,950,137 3613421
Pubflc safety 7,823,087 7,981,579 7,802,219 7,869,864 7,502,689
Transportation 1,359,188 1,418,860 1,364,885 1,733,257 1,634,821
Environmental protectien 676,803 748,417 175,384 785,039 731,850
Economic and pleysical davelopment 526,443 580,385 2,187,637 1,365,763 1,280,943
Cuktural and recreation 1,794,162 1,805,049 2,023,630 1,887,295 1,866,223
Caplial Profects 316,228 656,659 265,008 10,561 507,125
Debt service:
Interest 106,730 78,843 00,971 65,475 47,845
Princlpal 851,467 778,766 908,763 625,924 403,910
Total expenditures 16,942,024 16,352,085 18,420,399 17,283,315 17,748,627
Excoss of ravenuss over (under) expenditures (248,857) {634,476) {615,118) 87,213 (216,100}
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Pruceeds from installment purchase 526,000 355,000 487,000
Proceeds from disposal of capilal assels 32,516 16,794 134,285 22,159
Transfers in
Transfers out {60,000) {139,637}
‘Tolal olher fnancing sources (Uses) {27,484) 367,353 371,794 134,295 £09,159
Nat change In fund balances § (276441) § (307.113) _§ (243.324) § 221,508 § 294,059
Dobt service as a percentage of noncepital expenditures 8.13% 5.48% 5.51% 4.00% 3.14%
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Table 10

City of Lenoir, North Carollna

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{unaudited)
Percentage of
Fiscal Year General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Value of Per
June 30 Bonds Property Capita
2014 $ - 0.00% §
2013 $ - 0.00% $
2012 $ - 0.00% $
2011 $ - 0.00% §
2010 $ - 0.00% 8
2009 $ - 0.00% 8
2008 $ - 0.00% $
2007 $ - 0.00% §
2006 $ - 0.00% $
20056 $ - 000% 5§

Notes: Detalls regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Sea Table 13 for personal Income and population data,
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Table 11
Clty oerendlr, North Carolina
Direct and Overlapplng Governmental Activities Dobt

As of June 30, 2014
{unaudited)
Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Caldwsll County General Obligation Bonds $ 1,385,000 27.63% $ 382,676
Other debt
Caldwell County equity purchase contracts . 45,205,720 27.63% 12,490,340
Subtotal, overlapping debt 12,873,016
Lenoir direct debt 1,618,679
Tota! direct and overlapping debt $ 14,381,695

Sources: Assessed value data used 1o estimate applicabls percentages provided by the
Caldwell County assessor, Debt outstanding provided by each govarnmental unit,

Notes:  Overlapping governments are those that colncide, af beast in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the City. This schaduls estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those cverlapping
governments that is barne by the residents and businesses of Lenclr. This process recognlzes
that, when considering the City's abliity to Issue and repay long-term debt, the endire debi burden
bome by the residents and businesses should be taken Into account. However, this does not
Imply that every taxpayer i a resident - and, therefore, respongible for repaying the debt - of
each overlapping government.

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overtapping debt applicable is estimated uslng
taxable property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of
another government unlt's taxable assessed value that is within the City's boundarles and dividing It by each
unil's tolal taxable assessed value. This approach was glso used for Caldwell County’s other debt.
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Table 12
City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{unatdited)

Calculalion of legal debt margin as of June 30, 2014;

Assessed valuation - January 1, 2013
Debt LImit - 8% of assessed value

Gross long-tarm dabt
Less statulory deductions

Bonds applicable to water system

Legal debt margin

Debt fimit
Total net detd applicable to lmit
Legal debt margn

Yotal net debt applicable {o the Emit
as a percentage of debl I'mit

Debt Emit
Tolal net detd applicable {o Emit
Legal dobt margin

Toltal net debt applicable to the Hmit
as 3 parcstitaga of dabt Emit

Nota: Under H. C. Stalutes the City's oulstanding debl shoudd not
valua fess slatutory deductions.

$  1,800,102,814
§ 144,008,225
§ 11,703,739
- 11,703,739
$ 132,304,488
Fiscal Yoar
2004-2008 2005-2008 2006-2007 20072003 2008-2008
$  61,i78833 $ 102,141,488 $ 402,277,255 § 104757850 $ 119,369,300
19,046,329 22,603,405 21,387,609 18,260,324 19,543,613
$ 72,433,304 8§ 79638001 § BOEB0646 § 85791530 0§ DO.856,608
20.89% 22.13% 20.91% 18.40% 16.37%
Fiscal Year
2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
$ 114985842 3 15475983 § 118214283 § (26641784 & 144008225
17,360478 18,878,854 6,602,686 13,829,441 11,703,739
$ 07626364 3 95595429 & 01711607 5 112812353 § 132304488
15.10% 18.35% 13.95% 10,92% 8.13%
d 8% of folal d property
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Table 13

Gity of Lenoir, North Carolina
Demographlc and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

{unaudited)
Personal Per Caplta
Calendar Income Personal Unemployment

Year Population {In Milliorss} Income Rate

2013 17,812 * * 7.5%
2012 18,123 % 2,304 $ 28,121 12.8%
2011 18,123 $ 2,240 $ 27,261 13.5%
2010 18,261 $ 2,238 $ 26,958 12.4%
2009 . 19,064 $ 2,235 $ 27,969 13.4%
2008 18,952 3 2,246 $ 28,127 10.7%
2007 18,954 3 2,162 L 27,240 7.4%
2006 18,588 3 2177 ] 27,620 7.8%
2005 18,479 $ 2,086 $ 26,480 7.8%
2004 18,458 $ 2,039 $ 26,005 7.3%

Sources: Per caplta personal Income and personal income are for Galdwell County and is provided by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Population ts for the City of Lenoir and provided by the U.S, Census. Unempleyment rate is for the City of Lenoir and
provided by the N.C. Employment Security Commission

* Indlcates not avallable
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Table 14

City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Principal Employers

Current Year and Ten Years Ago
(unaudited)

2013 2003
Range of Range of
Employer Emplovees Rank Employees Rank
Caldwelf Gounty Schaools 1,000+ 1
Merchants Distributors 1,000+ 2
Bernhardgt Furniture Co., Inc. 500-99% 3 1,000+ 2
Caldwell Memorial Hospital £00-999 4 500-999 4
Caldwell Community Collegs and Tach Institute 500-999 5 ’
Wal-Mart Asscclates, Inc. £00-999 8
Caldwell County 500-909 7 500-9899 5
Broyhilt Furniture Industres, inc. 250-499 8 1,000+ 1
Thomasviile Fumniture Industries, Inc. 250-499 9
Fairfield Chair Co. 250-499 10 250-499 10
City of Lenoir 250-499 11
Avery Dennison 250-499 12
Rpm Wood Finishes Group 250-499 i3
Greer Laboratorfos 100-249 14
Vantage Foods 100-249 15
Onin Staffing LLC 100-249 i6
Kincald Fumniture Co,, Inc. 100-249 17 1,000+ 3
Bemls Manufacturing 100-249 18
Falrvalue Store 100-249 19
Foothills Temporary Employment 100-248 20
Homecare Management Corp, 250-499 6
Meridian Automotive Syistems 250-499 7
Sealed Alr Corporation 250-499 8
Nacco Materials Handling Group, Inc. 250-499 ]

Source: Employment Security Comimlission of NG

Note:

Employment data Is only available in ranges.
Data far 2003 is enly avallable for top ten employers.
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Table 15

Gity of Leaolr, North Garofina
Fuilinte-Equivalent Cily Gevernmant Employzes by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(naudted)
Full-time-Equivalent Employ¢es as of Juns 30 .
2065 8 2007 2008 2008

General Govemnment -

Administrative 120 10.0 128 10.5 14.0

Bullding Malnlenance 40 5.0 50 50 6.0

Engineering 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Cemglories 30 1.0 140 1.0
Vehicle Servicas 44 40 4.0 4.0 40
Public Safety

Police 750 70.6 73.0 78.0 76.0

Fire 63.0 60.0 60.0 63.0 85.0
Transportation

Streats 13.0 15.0 12.0 130 14.6
Envirenmental Protection

Sanitation 11.0 12,0 13.0 1.5 12.5
Economic and Physical Davalopment

Doventewwn Distriot 20 20 20 20 20

Planning 3.0 30 4.0 4.0 50
Culture and Recreation

Centers and Parks 10.0 90 14,0 31.0 200

Aquati: and Fitness Center 15.0 17.0 185 22,0 225

Landscagiy 7.0 86 6.0 8.0 6.5
Wator and Sewer Utlilly

Bernhardt Wales Treatment Plant 8.0 8.0 9.0 9.0 a0
Waler Distribution 18.0 17.0 15.0 i7.0 13.0
Waler Resourcas 6.0

Wasteveater Collection 6.0 €0 8.0 6.0 60
Wastewaler Pretraatment 3.0 30 3.0 3.0 a0
Gunpovider and Lover Creek

Wastewaler Traatment Plents 10.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 1.0
Tetal 271.0 262.0 272.0 02,0 309.0
Full-time-Equivalont Employeess as of Jung 30
2010 2011 2013 2014

General Government

Administrative 1340 14.5 155 125 14.0

Buiidng Mantenance 6.0 6.0 6.0 60 B0

Englneesing 20 20 20 20 20
Gematesles 1.0 i.0 ) 1.0 10 1.0
Vehicke Services 40 40 4.0 40 4.0
Fubilc Safely

Police 76.0 775 70 700 £§9.0

Fire 5.0 66.0 66.0 59.0 59.0
Transportation

Streats 4.5 14.5 145 140 145
Environmental Prelection

Sanltation 125 135 125 115 12,8
Economle and Physlcal Development

Daowenitown District 20 20 20 290 2,0

Planning 80 50 50 40 50
Culture and Recréation

Centers and Parks 28.0 275 250 205 25.0
Aquatic and Fitness Cenler 210 220 220 225 21.0

Landscaping 6.8 75 a5 8.0 8.0
Water and Sewer Utltity

Bemhardl Water Treatment Piant 8.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 2.0
Water Distfbution 140 140 4.0 13.0 125
Walst Rasources 5.0 10 7.0 10 70
Wastewaler Colacton 6.0 50 46 45 5.5

Wastewater Pretreatment 3.0 30 3.0 3.0 30
Gunpovder and Lower Creek

Wastewater Treatment Planis 1.0 10 110 11.0 11.0

Tolal 305___2 3120 3105 2845 2918
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Tabie 16
Cily of Lenolz, North Garofina

Operaling Indlcators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{unaudited)

Date of Incorporation: 1851

Farm of Government: Council and Manager

Area in Square Mliles: 19.1

Fiscal Year

Programi/Function 2004-2005 2005-2008 £008-2007 2007-2008 2008-2003
Pollce

Physicat arresls 3.492 1,678 2,089 1,842 4,881

Incident reports 1,471 2,242 2,087 2,168 2,138

Parking viotations 2,169 1,788 1484 1,442 1,028

Claticns tssued 4,057 4432 3,850 2,837 2,062
Fire

Cals answered 1,627 2408 2,69% 2,417 2414

Inspectons £09 422 490 379 311
Sanltation

Refuse coflected (fons per day) * 48,88 45.71 HIT 27.68
Streets

Street resufacing (mies) 276 215 1.00 150 136
Parks and Recreatlon

Acualic/Fitness membershps * 540 1,085 508 743

Aquatic/Fiuess admissions * * 7,369 7,440

Youth sports parficipants 656 386 812 1008 1040

Aduit sports participants 245 203 320 385 558
Water system

Naw connections 9 78 56 39 35

Water main breaks 34 52 43 43 30

Number of ufily customers 0,476 9,644 9,647 9,702 8743

Dally avg consumption in milon gadons 6.2 6.3 6.4 62 68
Vfastewaler syslem .

Number of utkty customers 7.819 7.851 8,324 8,403 8,463

Daty avg treatment in mon galons . 3.28 292 34 341 382

Fiscal Year

Program/Function 2008-2010 2010-2011 2044-2012 2012.2013 20132014
Palice

Physical aresls 1,918 1,935 2,178 21 2387

Incident repoits 2221 2,051 1,946 2,007 2,086

Parklng viclatons 858 863 344 616 690

Citatlons Issued 2548 2,671 2,846 2,683 3344
Fire

Calls answered 2,566 2,663 2,431 2,810 2,510

Inspections 405 311 297 355 37
Sanitation

Refuse cofected Qons per day) pyAiy] 27.26 25.93 23.54 2328
Sireets

Streat resufacing (mies) 0.76 075 0.00 {49 2,20
Parks and Recreatfon

Aquatc/Fithess membarsh’ps 1,353 1,063 1,806 2,078 2379

Agquale/Fitness admisslons 9,046 11,662 11,640 11,609 18019

Youth sports paricipands 1034 1045 1070 1115 1155

Adult sports paricipants 324 288 265 235 125
Water syslem

New connections 26 30 25 21 22

Water maln breaks 17 28 a5 29 30

Mumbar of ufity customers 8,670 2873 9,683 9,684 0,657

Da'ty avg consumpiion by mikon galons 56 6.2 7.2 56 8.1
Wastewater system

MNumber of uliily customers 8320 8,209 8,110 8,002 7.682

Daly avg treatment [n mElon gations 425 343 3.14 389 RES

Sources: Various City depariments

* tndicatas not avalable
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Table 17

Gity of Lenoir, Horth Carolina

Capltal Assot Statlstles by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{unawdited)
Fiscal Yoar

Program/Function 2004-2005 2005-2008 2008-2007 2007-2008 . 2008-200%
Pollce

Stations 1 1 1 1 ]

Substations 4] & ] 5 5

Patrol units 38 59 62 52 52
Flra

Slations 2 2 2 2 4
Sanitation

Coleclion Inicks 6 6 ] ] [
Streeis

hles of paved slreels 11062 119,66 119.79 120.52 121.65

Miles of unpaved streets 3.02 3.02 289 2.84 2,64

Streel Bghts 2,496 2,461 2,645 2,556 2,567
Parks and Recraation

Community cenlers 3 3 4 4 4

Parks 2 2 4 4 4

Swimming peols 2 2 2 2 2

Tennls courls 8- -] 8 8 8

Basebal?soflball diamonds 6 ;] 10 10 1o

Soccer flelds 11 11 11 12 iz .

h4les of gresmvay 2 438 7.20 7.80 8.00
Ydater systom

litas of vrates fnes 207.8 207.8 1.8 2080 210.4

Fire hydrants 091 o1 992 692 1,070

Starzge capacily {miflons of galions) 134 134 13.4 134 134

Maximum dalfy capacity (miBions of gal'ons) 12 12 12 12 12

Trealment Plaals 1 1 1 1 1
Viastewater system

Miles of sewage Enes 176.79 195,07 205.07 295,07 21511

Hiles of storm sewers 25 20 20 26 20

Maximum daly capacity (mitions of gafons) 8 8 g 8 8

Treatment Plants 2 2 2 2 2

Fizcal Year

Programifunction 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2042 2012-2013 2013.2014
Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1

Substations 5 5 5 2 2

Patrel units 62 52 52 41 47
Fire ’

Statlens 2 2 2 2 2
Sanltation

Coltection trucks 7 7 7 7 T
Streols

IEas of paved slreals 121.66 121.65% 121.55 12185 121.65

WEes of unpaved streals 2.64 2.64 2.64 239 239

Street fghts 2,515 2,577 2,576 2,633 2,633
Parks and Recreation

Community cenlers 4 4 4 4 4

Parks 4 4 4 4 4

Swimming pools 2 2 2 2 2

Tannls courls 8 & 3 8 8

Basebalfsoftball damonds 10 10 10 10 10

Soccer Felds 12 12 12 12 12

Wiles of greenvray 800 10.00 10.60 10.00 10.00
Water system .

MEes of water ines 219.4 219.4 219.4 219.4 219.4

Fire hydrants 1,070 1,070 1,070 1,070 1,070

Storaga capacity {milions of galons) 13.4 13.4 i34 34 13.4

Maxdmum dally capacty (miFons of galions) 12 12 i2 iz 12

Treatment Plants 1 1 1 1 1
Wastewater system

Milas of sewage Ines 216,11 21541 21591 215.11 215.11

Mies of slosm sewvers 20 20 20 20 20

Maximum daly cepacity (niifons of gafions) 8 8 a 8 8

Treatment Plants 2 2 2 2 -4
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S. Fric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Green Strest
P.O. Box 1476
Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephons (828} 438-1065
. Fax (828) 438-9117
Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditoxr’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Garolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financlal andits contained in Goverament Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, sach major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Tenolr, North Carelina,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 and the related notes to tha
financial statements, which collectively comprises the City of Lenoir’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 10,
2014, Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
fipnancial statements of the City of Lenoir ABC Board, as described in our
report on the City of Lenoirfs financial statements, This report does not
include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported
separately by those auditors. The finanoial statements of the City of Lenoir
ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we
considered the City of Lenoir’s internal control over financial reporting
{internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the cizoumstances for the purpose of expressing ocur opinions on the Financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the
effectiveness of the City of Lenoir’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lenocir’s internal

contxrol.,

A deficiency in internal control exlsts when the design or operation of
a oontrol does rot allow management or employses, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correoct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficienay, or a
combination of deficienoies, in internal control such that there is a ’
reasonable posalblility that a material misstatement of tha entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely

basis.
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To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carolina

‘A significant deficiency is a deflclency or combination of deficilencies, in

internal control that ls less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Cur conslderation of the internal control was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses ox
significant deficlencles may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not ildentify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and guesticned costs as 2014-1 and 2014-2 that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

Conmpliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of
Lenedr’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certaln provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the delermination of finanolal statement amounts,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion,
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govermment Auditing Standaxds.

City of Lenolr!s Response to Findings

City of Lenolr’s responses to the findings ldentified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The
City’s response was not subjected to the audlting procedures applied in the
audlt of the financial statements and, accoxdingly, we express no opinion on
it,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is sclely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control and compliance and the result of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auvditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not sultable for any other purposse.

LD

8, Eric Bowman, P,A,
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
September 10, 2014
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S. Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
5 403 South Green Slrest

PO, Box 1476

Morganton, NC 28680-1476
Telephone (828) 438-1065
Fax {828) 438-9117 '

Repoxt On Compliance For Its Major Federal Progran;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance;
In Accoxdance ¥With OMB Circular A-133;
and the State Single Rudit Implementation Act

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Repoxt on Compliance foxr Its Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audlt Manual for Governmental Auditors in North
Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have & direct
and material effect on the City of Lenoir’s major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2014, The City of Lenoir’s major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schadule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracks, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditorfa Respensibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City
of Lenoir’s major federal program based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referrad to above. We conducted our andit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Lhe
United States of Amerieca; the standards applicable to financial audits
contalned in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrecller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audite of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Aundit
Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single hudit Implementation Act regquirs that we plan and perform the audit to
ohtain reasonahle assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
exanining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of lLenoir’s compliance
with those reguirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We belleve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

on compliance for its major federal program, However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City of Lenoirfs compliance,
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To the Honorable Mavor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenolxr, Nerth Carolina

Opinion on Its Major Pederal Program

In our opinion, the City of Lenoir complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended
June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Lencir is responsible For establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above, In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City of Lenoir’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effeat on a major federal program to determine the auditing
proceduras that ave appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance for its major federal program and to
test and report on internal control ovenr compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal gontrol over compliance, BRcocordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lenoir’s internal
control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design
or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over.compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal controel
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the
limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencles in interxnal contiol over compliance
that might be significant deficiencles or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compiiance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the regulrements of OMB
Circular A~133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any othex

purpose.
S, Eric Bowman, P.A.
Cartified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
September 10, 2014
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S, Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Graen Slrest
P.O. Box 1476

Morganton, NC 28680-1476
Telaphone {828) 438-1065
Fax (828) 438-9117

Report On Compliance For Its Major State Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance;
In Accordance With OMB Circular A~133; and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act

Independent RBuditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lencoir, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Its Major State Program

We have audited the CGity of Lenoir, Worth Carolina, compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the Audit Manwal for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, 1ssued by the Logcal Government
Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on the City of
Lenolxr’s major state program for the year ended June 30, 2014. The City of
Lenolr’s major state program is identified in the summary of auditor’s
ragults section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questionad

coats,
Management’ 8 Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracta, and grants applicable to its state program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City
of Lenolr’s major state program based on our audit of the types of compliancs
requirements. referred to above, We conducted our audlt of compliance in
aacordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
hmericas the standards applicable to finaneial audits contained in and
applicable sections of OMB Cirxcular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as described in the Audit Manual
for Govermmental Auditors In North Carolina, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Those standsrds, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act reqguire that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with thes types of
compliance regquirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Lenoir’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We belisve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
on compliance for its major state program, However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City of Lenoir’s compliance,
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To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Councll
City of Lenoir, North Carclina

Opinion on Its Major State Program

In our opinion, the City of Lenoir complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance reguirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on its major state program for the year ended June

30, 2014,
Report on Internal Control Over Conpliance

Management of the City of Lenoir is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
complianoe requlrements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City of Lencir’s Internal control over
conpliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compllance for each major state program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveneas of internal
control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectivenass of the City’'s internal control over compliance,

& deficliency in internal control over compliance exists when the design
or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management ox
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficlencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reagonable possibllity that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected;, on a timely basis. A significant deficilency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program that is less severe than a material weakness in intermal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the
limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 'this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficienclies or material weaknesses, We did not
identify any deficlencies in Internal contrel over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesases may exist
that have not been identified,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance 1s
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control overn
compliance and the results of that testing based on the reguirements of OMB
. Cireular A~133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose,
8. Eric Bowman, P.A,
Cextified Public Accountant

Morganton, Worth Caxolina
September 10, 2014
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YFAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting;

e

yas

* Material weakness(es) identified? no

* Zignificant deficiencies identified
that are not consildered to be

material weaknesses X vyes none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major faderal programs:

=

* Material weakness{es) identified? yes no

*  Significant deficliencles identified
that are not considersd to be
material weaknesses yes X none repoxrted

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with Section)

510(a) of Circular aA-133 yes ¥ no
Identification of major federal programs:

CFPA Number Hames of Federal Program ox Cluster

U.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.239 Home Investments Partnership
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTICNED COSTS

FOR _THE YFAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section 1. Summary of Buditor's Results

Dollar threshold used to digtinguish betwean
Typs A and Type B Programs $300 000

Auditee gualified as low-risk aunditea? X ves no

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:
* Materlal weakness{es) identified? ___yses % nho
* Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknosses yes X none reported

Type of auditor'’s report issued on compliance
for major State programs: Ungualified

Any audlt findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with the State

8ingle Audit Implementation Act yes X no
Identification of major State programs:

Program Name
Pottell Bill Program

Bection II, Findings Related to the Budit of the Basic
Financial Statements of City of Lenoir:

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

2014-1
Condition: The City dees not incorporate an
internal audit function {person).
Criteria: Due to the complexlty and diverse

type of financial transactions an
internal audit function is needed,
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Section III.

Section IV,

Effect:.

Cause!

Recommendation:

HManagement
Responge:

2014-2

Conditions

Criteria:

Effect:

Cause?

Recommendation:

Management
Responset

Internal controls are less effective
without an internal audit function.

Due to the size of the municipality
it has not been considered cost
effactive,

Hire an additional employee famlliax
with governmental accounting
transactions to provide this service.

It is not economically feasible to
hire additional staff at this time.

The City overexpended severxal
departments in the General Fund and
Enterprise Fund totaling $27 536 and
$52 033 respectively.

All Local Governments are to adopt a
balanced budget and make necessary
amendments to the original budget as
conditions dictate,

Funds were expended out of departments
before the appropriate budget
amendmants were made.

Auditor reclassificatlons and unforeseen
accoounts payable,

The City should not expend any funds unless
there is adequate amounts in the particularx
department budget.

The City agrees with this finding.

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal

Awards:

None Reported,

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to State

Ayardg:

Hene Reported,
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CAROLINA

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Finding: 2014-1
A. ~ HName of Contact Person: Danny Gilbert, Finance Offilcer
B, Corractive Action: It is not economically
feasible to hire additional
staff at this time.
C. Proposed Completion
Date: N/B
Finding: 20142
A, Name of Contact Person: Danny Gilbert, Finance Officer
B, Corrective Action: The City will continue to
amend the budget as
conditions warrant.
c. Propesed Completion
bate: The Board will implement the

above as soon as possible,
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CITY OF LENOIR

SUMMARY SCHEDULE QF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Finding 2013-1

There was one audit finding concerning hiring an internal auditor,
This is not deemed practical at this time,

Finding 2013-2

There was one audit finding relative to overexpenditures., This finding
was not totally corrected even though budget amendments were mada.
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